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PART I

DEFINITIONS

In this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, the words “IES”, the “Company”, the “Registrant”, “we”, “our”, “ours” and “us” refer to Integrated Electrical Services,
Inc. and, except as otherwise specified herein, to our subsidiaries.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q includes certain statements that may be deemed “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, all of which are based upon various estimates and assumptions that the
Company believes to be reasonable as of the date hereof. These statements involve risks and uncertainties that could cause the Company’s actual future
outcomes to differ materially from those set forth in such statements. Such risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to:
 

 •  fluctuations in operating activity due to downturns in levels of construction, seasonality and differing regional economic conditions;
 

 •  competition in the construction industry, both from third parties and former employees, which could result in the loss of one or more customers or lead
to lower margins on new contracts;

 

 •  a general reduction in the demand for our services;
 

 •  a change in the mix of our customers, contracts and business;
 

 •  our ability to successfully manage construction projects;
 

 •  possibility of errors when estimating revenue and progress to date on percentage-of-completion contracts;
 

 •  inaccurate estimates used when entering into fixed-priced contracts;
 

 •  challenges integrating new types of work or new processes into our divisions;
 

 •  the cost and availability of qualified labor;
 

 •  accidents resulting from the physical hazards associated with our work and the potential for accidents;
 

 •  success in transferring, renewing and obtaining electrical and construction licenses;
 

 •  our ability to pass along increases in the cost of commodities used in our business, in particular, copper, aluminum, steel, fuel and certain plastics;
 

 •  potential supply chain disruptions due to credit or liquidity problems faced by our suppliers;
 

 •  loss of key personnel and effective transition of new management;
 

 •  warranty losses or other latent defect claims in excess of our existing reserves and accruals;
 

 •  warranty losses or other unexpected liabilities stemming from former divisions which we have sold or closed;
 

 •  growth in latent defect litigation in states where we provide residential electrical work for home builders not otherwise covered by insurance;
 

 •  limitations on the availability of sufficient credit or cash flow to fund our working capital needs;
 

 •  difficulty in fulfilling the covenant terms of our credit facilities;
 

 •  increased cost of surety bonds affecting margins on work and the potential for our surety providers to refuse bonding or require additional collateral at
their discretion;
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 •  increases in bad debt expense and days sales outstanding due to liquidity problems faced by our customers;
 

 •  changes in the assumptions made regarding future events used to value our stock options and performance-based stock awards;
 

 •  the recognition of potential goodwill, long-lived assets and other investment impairments;
 

 •  uncertainties inherent in estimating future operating results, including revenues, operating income or cash flow;
 

 •  disagreements with taxing authorities with regard to tax positions we have adopted;
 

 •  the recognition of tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions;
 

 •  complications associated with the incorporation of new accounting, control and operating procedures;
 

 •  the financial impact of new or proposed accounting regulations;
 

 •  the ability of our controlling shareholder to take action not aligned with other shareholders;
 

 •  the possibility that certain tax benefits of our net operating losses may be restricted or reduced in a change in ownership;
 

 •  credit and capital market conditions, including changes in interest rates that affect the cost of construction financing and mortgages, and the inability
for some of our customers to retain sufficient financing which could lead to project delays or cancellations;

 

 •  the sale or disposition of the shares of our common stock held by our majority shareholder, which, under certain circumstances, would trigger change of
control provisions in contracts such as employment agreements and financing and surety arrangements; and

 

 •  Additional closures or sales of facilities in our Commercial & Industrial segment could result in significant future charges and a significant disruption
of our operations.

You should understand that the foregoing, as well as other risk factors discussed in our annual report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended September 30, 2011,
could cause future outcomes to differ materially from those experienced previously or those expressed in such forward-looking statements. We undertake no
obligation to publicly update or revise information concerning our restructuring efforts, borrowing availability, cash position or any forward-looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances that may arise after the date of this report. Forward-looking statements are provided in this quarterly report on
Form 10-Q pursuant to the safe harbor established under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and should be evaluated in the context of the
estimates, assumptions, uncertainties and risks described herein.

General information about us can be found at www.ies-co.com under “Investor Relations”. Our annual report on Form 10-K/A, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q
and current reports on Form 8-K, as well as any amendments to those reports, are available free of charge through our website as soon as reasonably
practicable after we file them with, or furnish them to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. You may also contact our Investor Relations department at
713-860-1500, and they will provide you with copies of our public reports.
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In Thousands, Except Share Information)
 
   March 31,   September 30, 
   2012   2011  
   (Unaudited)   Restated  

ASSETS    
CURRENT ASSETS:    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 17,766  $ 35,577 
Restricted cash    8,812   —    
Accounts receivable:    

Trade, net of allowance of $2,069 and $2,645, respectively    69,577   85,728 
Retainage    16,210   17,944 

Inventories    11,718   8,443 
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts    9,753   9,963 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    6,958   2,840 

Total current assets    140,794   160,495 
LONG-TERM RECEIVABLE, net of allowance of $0 and $59, respectively    259   200 
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net    8,519   8,016 
GOODWILL    4,446   4,446 
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS, net    5,161   7,087 

Total assets   $ 159,179  $ 180,244 
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY    

CURRENT LIABILITIES:    

Current maturities of long-term debt   $ 1,644  $ 209 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses    63,420   78,980 
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts    19,081   19,585 

Total current liabilities    84,145   98,774 
LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current maturities    10,161   10,289 
LONG-TERM DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY    284   284 
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    7,266   6,596 

Total liabilities    101,856   115,943 
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:    

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, none issued and outstanding    —      —    
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 15,407,802 and 15,407,802 shares issued and

14,994,653 and 14,938,071 outstanding, respectively    154   154 
Treasury stock, at cost, 413,149 and 451,329 shares, respectively    (4,526)   (5,595) 
Additional paid-in capital    163,375   164,262 
Retained deficit    (101,680)   (94,520) 

Total stockholders’ equity    57,323   64,301 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 159,179  $ 180,244 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In Thousands, Except Share Information)
 
   Three Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
      Restated  
Revenues   $ 112,807  $ 118,326 
Cost of services    100,221   112,999 

Gross profit    12,586   5,327 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    15,222   14,072 
Gain on sale of assets    (87)   (87) 
Restructuring charges    264   —    

Loss from operations    (2,813)   (8,658) 
Interest and other (income) expense:    

Interest expense    543   576 
Interest income    (8)   (24) 

Other (income) expense, net    1   (8) 
Interest and other expense, net    536   544 

Loss from operations before income taxes    (3,349)   (9,202) 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes    82   929 
Net loss   $ (3,431)  $ (10,131) 
(Loss) per share:    

Basic   $ (0.23)  $ (0.70) 
Diluted   $ (0.23)  $ (0.70) 

Shares used in the computation of loss per share    
Basic    14,638,678   14,481,005 
Diluted    14,638,678   14,481,005 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In Thousands, Except Share Information)
 
   Six Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
      Restated  
Revenues   $ 228,101  $ 228,137 
Cost of services    204,606   211,752 

Gross profit    23,495   16,385 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    28,596   32,724 
Gain on sale of assets    (70)   (6,816) 
Asset impairment    —      3,551 
Restructuring charges    864   —    

Loss from operations    (5,895)   (13,074) 
Interest and other (income) expense:    

Interest expense    1,088   1,175 
Interest income    (15)   (49) 

Other (income) expense, net    (64)   (23) 
Interest and other expense, net    1,009   1,103 

Loss from operations before income taxes    (6,904)   (14,177) 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes    250   253 
Net loss   $ (7,154)  $ (14,430) 
(Loss) per share:    

Basic   $ (0.49)  $ (1.00) 
Diluted   $ (0.49)  $ (1.00) 

Shares used in the computation of loss per share    
Basic    14,603,693   14,463,996 
Diluted    14,603,693   14,463,996 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In Thousands)
 
   Six Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
   (Unaudited)   Restated  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    

Net loss   $ (7,154)  $ (14,430) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:    

Bad debt expense    (576)   (466) 
Deferred financing cost amortization    (9)   169 
Depreciation and amortization    1,058   3,418 
Loss (gain) on sale of assets    (9)   (6,816) 
Non-cash compensation expense    276   436 
Asset impairment    —      3,551 
Equity in losses of investment    —      96 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities    
Accounts receivable    16,829   389 
Inventories    (3,276)   (1,640) 
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings    209   (2,930) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    (571)   57 
Other non-current assets    (40)   2,820 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses    (14,130)   6,884 
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings    (504)   (2,842) 
Other non-current liabilities    98   (140) 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities    (7,799)   (11,444) 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:    

Purchases of property and equipment    (978)   (755) 
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment    —      207 
Proceeds from sales of facilities    —      16,287 
Distribution from unconsolidated affiliates    —      (57) 

Net cash (used in) provided by continuing operations    (978)   15,682 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:    

Repayments of debt    (128)   (390) 
Purchase of treasury stock    (94)   (65) 
Changes in restricted cash    (8,812)   —    

Net cash used in financing activities    (9,034)   (455) 
NET DECREASE IN CASH EQUIVALENTS    (17,811)   3,783 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period    35,577   32,924 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period   $ 17,766  $ 36,707 

   2012   2011  
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:    

Cash paid for interest   $ 560  $ 1,009 
Cash paid for income taxes   $ 137  $ 106 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(All Amounts in Thousands Except Share Amounts)

1. BUSINESS
Description of the Business
Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., a Delaware corporation, is a leading national provider of electrical infrastructure services to the communications,
residential, commercial and industrial industries. Originally established as IES in 1997, we provide services from 57 locations serving the continental United
States as of March 31, 2012. Our operations are organized into three business segments, based upon the nature of its products and services:
 

 •  Communications – Nationwide provider of products and services for mission critical infrastructure, such as data centers, of large corporations.
 

 •  Residential – Regional provider of electrical installation services for single-family housing and multi-family apartment complexes.
 

 •  Commercial & Industrial – Provider of electrical design, construction, and maintenance services to the commercial and industrial markets in
various regional markets and nationwide in certain areas of expertise, such as the power infrastructure market.

Sale of Non-Strategic Manufacturing Facility
On November 30, 2010, a subsidiary of the Company sold substantially all the assets and certain liabilities of a non-strategic manufacturing facility engaged
in manufacturing and selling fabricated metal buildings housing electrical equipment, such as switchgears, motor starters and control systems, to Siemens
Energy, Inc. As part of this transaction, Siemens Energy, Inc. also acquired certain real property where the fabrication facilities are located from another
subsidiary of the Company. The purchase price of $10,086 was adjusted to reflect working capital variances. The transaction was completed on December 10,
2010 at which time we recognized a gain of $6,763.

Sale of Non-Core Electrical Distribution Facility
On February 28, 2011, Key Electrical Supply, Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, sold substantially all the assets and certain liabilities of a non-
core electrical distribution facility engaged in distributing wiring, lighting, electrical distribution, power control and generators for residential and
commercial applications to Elliot Electric Supply, Inc. The purchase price of $6,676 was adjusted to reflect working capital variances. The loss on this
transaction was immaterial.

Controlling Shareholder
At March 31, 2012, Tontine Capital Partners, L.P. and its affiliates (collectively, “Tontine”), was the controlling shareholder of the Company’s common
stock. Accordingly, Tontine has the ability to exercise significant control of our affairs, including the election of directors and any action requiring the
approval of shareholders, including the approval of any potential merger or sale of all or substantially all assets or divisions of the Company, or the Company
itself. In its most recent Schedule 13D, Tontine stated that it has no current plans to make any material change in the Company’s business or corporate
structure. For a more complete discussion on our relationship with Tontine, please refer to Note 2 “Controlling Shareholder” in the notes to these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Related Party Transaction
On March 29, 2012, we entered into a sublease agreement with Tontine Associates, LLC, an affiliate of our controlling shareholder, for corporate office space
in Greenwich, Connecticut. The lease extends from April 1, 2012 through March 31, 2014, with monthly payments due in the amount of $6.
 

9



Table of Contents

INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(All Amounts in Thousands Except Share Amounts)
 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements reflect, in the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary to present fairly the financial
position as of, and the results of operations for, the periods presented. All adjustments are considered to be normal and recurring unless otherwise described
herein. Interim period results are not necessarily indicative of results of operations or cash flows for the full year. During interim periods, we follow the same
accounting policies disclosed in our annual report of Form 10-K/A for the year ended September 30, 2011. Please refer to the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in our annual report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended September 30, 2011, when reviewing our interim financial results set forth
herein.

Revenue Recognition
As of March 31, 2012 the Company had recognized revenue totaling $1,098 associated with one contract claim. We recognize revenue associated with
unapproved change orders and claims to the extent that related costs have been incurred, recovery is probable and the value can be reliably estimated.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, notes receivable, investments, accounts payable, a line of credit, a note
payable issued to finance an insurance policy, and a $10,000 senior subordinated loan agreement (the “Tontine Term Loan”). We believe that the carrying
value of financial instruments, with the exception of the Tontine Term Loan and our cost method investment in EnerTech, in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets approximates their fair value due to their short-term nature. We estimate that the fair value of the Tontine Term Loan is $10,457
based on comparable debt instruments at March 31, 2012. For additional information, please refer to Note 4, “Debt – The Tontine Term Loan” of this report.

We estimate that the fair value of our investment in EnerTech is $1,097 at March 31, 2012. For additional information, please refer to Note 8, “Securities and
Equity Investments – Investment in EnerTech.

Asset Impairment
During the six months ended March 31, 2011 the Company ceased use of certain internally-developed software. As a result, the software has a fair value of
zero. The net charge of $3,551 was recorded separately in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as a component of loss from operations.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) requires the
use of estimates and assumptions by management in determining the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Estimates are primarily used in our revenue recognition of construction in progress, fair value assumptions in analyzing goodwill, investments, intangible
assets and long-lived asset impairments and adjustments, allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, stock-based compensation, reserves for legal matters,
assumptions regarding estimated costs to exit certain divisions, realizability of deferred tax assets, and self-insured claims liabilities and related reserves.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. We have restricted cash used to
collateralize our letters of credit.

Seasonality and Quarterly Fluctuations
Results of operations from our Residential construction segment are seasonal, depending on weather trends, with typically higher revenues generated during
spring and summer and lower revenues during fall and winter. The Communications and Commercial & Industrial segments of our business are less subject to
seasonal trends, as work in these segments generally is
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(All Amounts in Thousands Except Share Amounts)
 
performed inside structures protected from the weather. Our service and maintenance business is generally not affected by seasonality. In addition, the
construction industry has historically been highly cyclical. Our volume of business may be adversely affected by declines in construction projects resulting
from adverse regional or national economic conditions. Quarterly results may also be materially affected by the timing of new construction projects.
Accordingly, operating results for any fiscal period are not necessarily indicative of results that may be achieved for any subsequent fiscal period.

2. CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
As of March 31, 2012, $10,000 remains outstanding on the Tontine Term Loan, with $274 in accrued interest.

Although Tontine has not indicated any plans to alter its ownership level, should Tontine reconsider its investment plans and sell its controlling interest in
the Company, a change in ownership would occur. A change in ownership, as defined by Internal Revenue Code Section 382, could reduce the availability of
net operating losses for federal and state income tax purposes. Furthermore, a change in control would trigger the change of control provisions in a number of
our material agreements, including our $40,000 Revolving Credit Facility, bonding agreements with our sureties and certain employment contracts with
certain officers and employees of the Company.

Tontine Capital Partners, L.P. and its affiliates own the majority of our common stock. As a significant stakeholder, Tontine provides strategic, general
corporate, operational, organizational and financial advice to our board of directors and management. Although such advice may be considered by the board
and management, neither the board nor management is under any legal obligation to follow such advice.

3. STRATEGIC ACTIONS
The 2011 Restructuring Plan
In the second quarter of our 2011 fiscal year, we began a restructuring program (the “2011 Restructuring Plan”) that was designed to consolidate operations
within our Commercial & Industrial business. Pursuant to the 2011 Restructuring Plan, we will finalize the sale or closure of certain underperforming
facilities within our Commercial & Industrial operations. The 2011 Restructuring Plan is a key element of our commitment to return the Company to
profitability.

The facilities directly affected by the 2011 Restructuring Plan are in several locations throughout the country, including Arizona, Florida, Iowa,
Massachusetts, Louisiana, Nevada and Texas. These facilities were selected due to current business prospects and the extended time frame needed to return
the facilities to a profitable position. We expect that closure costs could range from $4,500 to $5,500 in the aggregate. Closure costs associated with the 2011
Restructuring Plan include equipment and facility lease termination expenses, incremental management consulting expenses and severance costs for
employees. The Company is in the process of winding down these facilities. As part of our restructuring charges within our Commercial & Industrial segment
we recognized $35 in severance costs, $764 in consulting services, and $65 in costs related to lease terminations during the six months ended March 31,
2012.

The following table summarizes the activities related to our restructuring activities by component:
 

   
Severance
Charges   

Consulting
Charges   

Lease Termination
& Other Charges   Total  

Restructuring liability at September 30, 2011   $1,081  $ 336  $ 790  $ 2,207 
Restructuring charges incurred    35   764   65   864 
Cash payments made    (650)   (1,084)   (268)   (2,002) 
Restructuring liability at March 31, 2012   $ 466  $ 16  $ 587  $ 1,069 
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(All Amounts in Thousands Except Share Amounts)
 
Additional Facility Closing
During the first quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company determined the underperforming Baltimore facility within its Commercial & Industrial and
Communications divisions would be either sold or closed over the next three to six months. This closing is a key element of management’s overall plan to
return the Company to profitability. The Baltimore location was selected based upon current businesses performance and the extended time frame needed to
return the operation to profitability. We expect that closure costs could range from $340 to $480 in the aggregate.

4. DEBT
Debt consists of the following:
 

   
March 31,

2012   
September 30,

2011  
Tontine Term Loan, due May 15, 2013, bearing interest at 11.00%   $10,000  $ 10,000 
Insurance Financing Agreements    1,367   —    
Capital leases and other    438   498 

Total debt    11,805   10,498 
Less — Short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt    (1,644)   (209) 

Total long-term debt   $10,161  $ 10,289 

Future payments on debt at March 31, 2012 are as follows:
 

   
Capital Leases

and Other   
Insurance
Financing   Term Debt    Total  

2012   $ 202  $ 1,367   $ —      $ 1,569 
2013    317   —       10,000    10,317 
2014    26   —       —       26 
2015    —      —       —       —    
2016    —      —       —       —    
Thereafter    —      —       —       —    
Less: Imputed Interest    (107)   —       —       (107) 
Total   $ 438  $ 1,367   $10,000   $11,805 

For the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, we incurred interest expense of $543 and $576, respectively.

The Revolving Credit Facility
On May 12, 2006, we entered into a Loan and Security Agreement (the “Loan and Security Agreement”), for a revolving credit facility (the “Revolving
Credit Facility”) with Bank of America, N.A. and certain other lenders. On May 7, 2008, we renegotiated the terms of our Revolving Credit Facility and
entered into an amended agreement with the same financial institutions. On April 30, 2010, we renegotiated the terms of, and entered into an amendment to,
the Loan and Security Agreement pursuant to which the maturity date was extended to May 31, 2012. In connection with the amendment, we incurred an
amendment fee of $200, which is being amortized over 24 months.
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(All Amounts in Thousands Except Share Amounts)
 
On December 15, 2011, we renegotiated the terms of, and entered into an amendment to, the Loan and Security Agreement without incurring termination
charges. Under the terms of the amended Revolving Credit Facility, the size of the facility was reduced to $40,000 and the maturity date was extended to
November 12, 2012. Further, we were required to cash collateralize all of our letters of credit issued by the banks. The cash collateral is added to the
borrowing base calculation at 100% throughout the term of the agreement. The Revolving Credit Facility requires that we maintain a fixed charge coverage
ratio of not less than 1.0:1.0 at any time that our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability is less than $25,000 and, thereafter, until
such time as our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability has been at least $25,000 for a period of 60 consecutive days. Additionally,
if there are any loans outstanding on or after April 30, 2012, the Company’s EBITDA for the period from October 2011 through March 2012, may not exceed
a negative $2,500 and we will be required to have a cumulative fixed charge coverage ratio of at least 1.0:1.0 at all times beginning April 1, 2012 to maintain
any borrowings under the agreement. The measurement period for this additional test for borrowings begins with the monthly operating results for April 2012
and adds the monthly operating results for each month thereafter to determine the cumulative test during such time as revolving loans are outstanding.
Failure to meet this performance test will result in an immediate event of default. The amended Agreement also calls for cost of borrowings of 4.0% over
LIBOR per annum. Cost for letters of credit are the same as borrowings and also include a 25 basis point “fronting fee.” All other terms and conditions remain
unchanged. In connection with the amendment, we incurred an amendment fee of $60 which, together with the unamortized balance of the prior amendment,
is being amortized using the straight line method through November 12, 2012.

The Revolving Credit Facility is guaranteed by our subsidiaries and secured by first priority liens on substantially all of our subsidiaries’ existing and future
acquired assets, exclusive of collateral provided to our surety providers. The Revolving Credit Facility contains customary affirmative, negative and
financial covenants. The Revolving Credit Facility also restricts us from paying cash dividends and places limitations on our ability to repurchase our
common stock.

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility may not exceed a “borrowing base” that is determined monthly by our lenders based on available collateral,
primarily certain accounts receivables and inventories. Under the terms of the Revolving Credit Facility in effect as of March 31, 2012, interest for loans and
letter of credit fees is based on our Total Liquidity, which is calculated for any given period as the sum of average daily availability for such period plus
average daily unrestricted cash on hand for such period as follows:
 
    Annual Interest Rate for
Total Liquidity  Annual Interest Rate for Loans  Letters of Credit

Greater than or equal to $60,000  LIBOR plus 3.00% or Base Rate plus 1.00%  3.00% plus 0.25% fronting fee
Greater than $40,000 and less than $60,000  LIBOR plus 3.25% or Base Rate plus 1.25%  3.25% plus 0.25% fronting fee
Less than or equal to $40,000  LIBOR plus 3.50% or Base Rate plus 1.50%  3.50% plus 0.25% fronting fee

At March 31, 2012, we had $22,009 available to us under the Revolving Credit Facility, with no outstanding borrowings. We had $8,812 in outstanding
letters of credit which were fully collateralized with restricted cash.

At March 31, 2012, our Total Liquidity was $39,770. For the three months ended March 31, 2012, we paid no interest for loans under the Revolving Credit
Facility and had a weighted average interest rate, including fronting fees, of 3.50% for letters of credit. In addition, we are charged monthly in arrears for
(1) an unused commitment fee of 0.50%, and (2) certain other fees and charges as specified in the Loan and Security Agreement, as amended.

As of March 31, 2012, we were subject to the financial covenant under the Revolving Credit Facility requiring that we maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio
of not less than 1.0:1.0 at any time that our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability is less than $25,000 and, thereafter, until such
time as our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability has been at least $25,000 for a period of 60 consecutive days. As of March 31,
2012, our Total Liquidity was in excess of $25,000 for the prior 60 day period. Had our Total Liquidity been less than $25,000 at March 31, 2012, we would
not have met the 1.0:1.0 fixed charge coverage ratio test, had it been applicable.
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The Tontine Term Loan
On December 12, 2007, we entered into the Tontine Term Loan, a $25,000 senior subordinated loan agreement, with Tontine. The Tontine Term Loan bears
interest at 11.0% per annum and is due on May 15, 2013. Interest is payable quarterly in cash or in-kind at our option. Any interest paid in-kind will bear
interest at 11.0% in addition to the loan principal. On April 30, 2010, we prepaid $15,000 of principal on the Tontine Term Loan. On May 1, 2010, Tontine
assigned the Tontine Term Loan to TCP Overseas Master Fund II, L.P. We may repay the Tontine Term Loan at any time prior to the maturity date at par, plus
accrued interest without penalty. The Tontine Term Loan is subordinated to the Revolving Credit Facility. The Tontine Term Loan is an unsecured
obligation of the Company and its subsidiary borrowers. The Tontine Term Loan contains no financial covenants or restrictions on dividends or distributions
to stockholders.

5. PER SHARE INFORMATION
Basic earnings per share is calculated as income (loss) available to common stockholders, divided by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Our restricted shares are considered participating securities, but do not have a contractual obligation to share in the losses in
any given period. As a result, these participating securities will not be allocated any losses in the periods of net losses, but will be allocated income in the
periods of net income using the two-class method.

The following table reconciles the components of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for the Three and Six Months Ended March 31, 2012 and
2011, (in thousands, except share information):
 

   Three Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
Numerator:    
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders   $ (3,431)  $ (10,131) 
Net income (loss) attributable to restricted shareholders    —      —    
Net income (loss)   $ (3,431)  $ (10,131) 
Denominator:    
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic    14,638,678   14,481,005 
Effect of dilutive stock options and non-vested restricted stock    —      —    
Weighted average common and common equivalent shares outstanding

— diluted    14,638,678   14,481,005 
Basic loss per share   $ (0.23)  $ (0.70) 

Diluted loss per share   $ (0.23)  $ (0.70) 
 

   Six Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
Numerator:    
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders   $ (7,154)  $ (14,430) 
Net income (loss) attributable to restricted shareholders    —      —    
Net income (loss)   $ (7,154)  $ (14,430) 
Denominator:    
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic    14,603,693   14,463,996 
Effect of dilutive stock options and non-vested restricted stock    —      —    
Weighted average common and common equivalent shares outstanding

— diluted    14,603,693   14,463,996 
Basic loss per share   $ (0.49)  $ (1.00) 

Diluted loss per share   $ (0.49)  $ (1.00) 
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For the three months and six months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, 20,000 and 158,500 stock options, respectively, were excluded from the computation
of fully diluted earnings per share because the exercise prices of the options were greater than the average price of our common stock. For the three months
and six months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, 352,360 and 419,600 shares, respectively, of restricted stock were excluded from the computation of fully
diluted earnings per share because we reported a loss from continuing operations.

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS
We manage and measure performance of our business in three distinct operating segments: Communications, Residential and Commercial & Industrial. These
segments are reflective of how the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) reviews operating results for the purposes of allocating resources
and assessing performance. The Company’s CODM is its Chief Executive Officer. The Communications segment consists of low voltage installation, design,
planning and maintenance for mission critical infrastructure such as data centers. The Residential segment consists of electrical installation, replacement and
renovation services in single-family, condominium, townhouse and low-rise multifamily housing units. The Commercial & Industrial segment provides a
broad range of electrical design, construction, renovation, engineering and maintenance services to the commercial and industrial markets.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. We evaluate performance based
on income from operations of the respective business units prior to the allocation of Corporate office expenses. Transactions between segments are eliminated
in consolidation. Our Corporate office provides general and administrative as well as support services to our three operating segments. Management allocates
costs to segments for selling, general and administrative expenses and depreciation expense.

Segment information for the three and six months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:
 
   Three Months Ended March 31, 2012  

   Communications   Residential  
Commercial &

Industrial   Corporate   Total  
Revenues   $ 29,024   $29,628  $ 54,155  $ —     $112,807 
Cost of services    25,244    25,097   49,882   (2)   100,221 
Gross profit    3,780    4,531   4,273   2   12,586 
Selling, general and administrative    2,863    4,061   3,727   4,571   15,222 
Corporate allocations    474    472   1,423   (2,369)   —    
Loss (gain) on sale of assets    —       3   (90)   —      (87) 
Restructuring charge    —       —      236   28   264 
Income (loss) from operations   $ 443   $ (5)  $ (1,023)  $ (2,228)  $ (2,813) 
Other data:        

Depreciation and amortization expense   $ 75   $ 90  $ 69  $ 303  $ 537 
Total assets   $ 18,502    $27,318  $ 67,087   $46,272  $159,179 
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   Three Months Ended March 31, 2011 as Restated  

   Communications   Residential   
Commercial &

Industrial   Corporate   Total  
Revenues   $  23,368   $ 26,310  $  68,648  $ —    $ 118,326 
Cost of services    20,944    22,714   69,260   81   112,999 
Gross profit    2,424    3,596   (612)   (81)   5,327 
Selling, general and administrative    1,723    3,936   1,550   6,863   14,072 
Corporate allocations    586    572   2,287   (3,445)   —    
(Gain) Loss on sale of assets    —       (48)   (7)   (32)   (87) 
Income (loss) from operations   $ 115   $ (864)  $ (4,442)  $ (3,467)  $ (8,658) 
Other data:        

Depreciation and amortization expense   $ 22   $ 84  $ 158  $ 1,297  $ 1,561 
Total assets   $ 19,957    $ 21,878  $ 86,853   $62,980  $ 191,668 

 
   Six Months Ended March 31, 2012  

   Communications   Residential   
Commercial &

Industrial   Corporate   Total  
Revenues   $ 55,126   $58,900   $ 114,075  $ —     $228,101 
Cost of services    48,007    49,721    106,870   8   204,606 
Gross profit    7,119    9,179    7,205   (8)   23,495 
Selling, general and administrative    5,385    8,003    6,808   8,400   28,596 
Corporate allocations    949    943    2,846   (4,738)   —    
Loss (gain) on sale of assets    11    7    (88)   —      (70) 
Restructuring charge    —       —       818   46   864 
Income (loss) from operations   $ 774   $ 226   $ (3,179)  $ (3,716)  $ (5,895) 
Other data:         

Depreciation and amortization expense   $ 140   $ 172   $ 157  $ 590  $ 1,059 
Total assets   $ 18,502    $27,318   $ 67,087   $46,272  $159,179 

 
   Six Months Ended March 31, 2011 As Restated  

   Communications   Residential  
Commercial
& Industrial   Corporate   Total  

Revenues   $ 43,290   $52,354  $132,493  $ —     $228,137 
Cost of services    37,660    44,222   129,789   81   211,752 
Gross profit    5,630    8,132   2,704   (81)   16,385 
Selling, general and administrative    3,481    8,131   6,846   14,266   32,724 
Corporate allocations    1,136    1,160    4,433    (6,729)   —    
Loss (gain) on sale of assets    —       (70)   (49)   (3,146)   (3,265) 
Income (loss) from operations   $ 1,013   $ (1,089)  $ (8,526)  $ (4,472)  $ (13,074) 
Other data:        

Depreciation and amortization expense   $ 48   $ 183  $ 393  $ 2,844  $ 3,468 
Total assets   $ 19,957    $21,878  $ 86,853  $62,980  $191,668 
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7. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
The 2006 Equity Incentive Plan became effective on May 12, 2006 (as amended, the “2006 Equity Incentive Plan”). The 2006 Equity Incentive Plan
provides for grants of stock options as well as grants of stock, including restricted stock. We have approximately 1.0 million shares of common stock
authorized for issuance under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan.

On May 12, 2008, 10,555 shares of outstanding common stock that were reserved for issuance upon exchange of previously issued shares pursuant to our
Plan were cancelled.

Treasury Stock
During the six months ended March 31, 2012, we repurchased 34,578 common shares from our employees to satisfy minimum tax withholding requirements
upon the vesting of restricted stock issued under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, and 27,242 unvested shares were forfeited by former employees and
returned to treasury stock. We issued 100,000 shares out of treasury stock under our share-based compensation programs.

During the six months ended March 31, 2011, we repurchased 18,846 common shares from our employees to satisfy minimum tax withholding requirements
upon the vesting of restricted stock issued under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan and 63,077 unvested shares were forfeited by former employees and returned
to treasury stock. We issued 204,000 shares out of treasury stock under our share-based compensation programs.

Restricted Stock

Restricted Stock Awards:

Fiscal
 Year   

Shares
Granted    

Weighted
Average Fair

Value at
Date of
Grant    Vested    Forfeitures    

Shares
Outstanding   

Expense
recognized

through March 31,
2012  

2006    384,850   $ 24.78     258,347    126,503    —      $ 6,402  
2006    25,000   $ 17.36     25,000    —       —      $ 434  
2007    20,000   $ 25.08     20,000    —       —      $ 502  
2007    4,000   $ 26.48     4,000    —       —      $ 106  
2008    101,650   $ 19.17     85,750    15,900    —      $ 1,779  
2009    185,100   $ 8.71     146,400    38,700    —      $ 1,344  
2010    225,486   $ 3.64     59,347    77,439    88,700   $ 450  
2011    320,000   $ 3.39     87,579     68,761     163,660   $ 319  
2012    100,000   $ 2.00     —       —       100,000   $ 33  

During the six months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, we recognized $276 and $436 respectively, in compensation expense related to these restricted stock
awards. At March 31, 2012, the unamortized compensation cost related to outstanding unvested restricted stock was $749. We expect to recognize $261 of
this unamortized compensation expense during the remaining six months of our 2012 fiscal year and $488 thereafter. A summary of restricted stock awards
for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 is provided in the table below:
 

   Years Ended September 30,  
   2012   2011   2010  
Unvested at beginning of year    376,200   352,086   230,716 

Granted    100,000   320,000   225,486 
Vested    (96,598)   (165,628)   (66,116) 
Forfeited    (27,242)   (130,258)   (38,000) 

Unvested at end of year    352,360   376,200   352,086 
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All the restricted shares granted under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (vested or unvested) participate in dividends issued to common shareholders, if any.

Phantom Stock Units
We granted 24,632 shares of performance-based phantom stock units (“PSUs”) to the members of the Board of Directors in 2011. These PSU’s will be paid via
unrestricted stock grants to each director upon his departure from the Board of Directors.
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Stock Options
We utilized a binomial option pricing model to measure the fair value of stock options granted. Our determination of fair value of share-based payment
awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly complex and
subjective variables. These variables include, but are not limited to, our expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards, the risk-free rate of return,
and actual and projected employee stock option exercise behaviors. The expected life of stock options is not considered under the binomial option pricing
model that we utilize. The assumptions used in the fair value method calculation for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are disclosed in the
following table:
 

   Years Ended March 31,  

    2012    2011   2010  
Weighted average value per option granted during the period   $N/A     2.05  $N/A  
Dividends (1)   $N/A     —     $N/A  
Stock price volatility (2)    N/A     69.9%   N/A  
Risk-free rate of return    N/A     1.9%   N/A  
Option term    N/A     10.0 years    N/A  
Expected life    N/A     6.0 years    N/A  
Forfeiture rate (3)    N/A     0.0%   N/A  

 
(1) We do not currently pay dividends on our common stock.
(2) Based upon the Company’s historical volatility.
(3) The forfeiture rate for these options was assumed on the date of grant to be zero based on the limited number of employees who have been awarded

stock options.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the portion of the share-based payment awards that is ultimately
expected to vest during the period. As stock-based compensation expense recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations is based on awards
ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. We estimate our forfeitures at the time of grant and revise, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

The following table summarizes activity under our stock option plans.
 

      Weighted Average 
   Shares   Exercise Price  
Outstanding, September 30, 2008    161,000  $ 26.66 
Options granted    7,500   17.09 
Exercised    —      —    
Forfeited and Cancelled    (10,000)   41.61 
Outstanding, September 30, 2009    158,500  $ 18.66 
Options granted    —      —    
Exercised    —      —    
Forfeited and Cancelled    —      —    
Outstanding, September 30, 2010    158,500  $ 18.66 
Options granted    20,000   3.24 
Exercised    —      —    
Forfeited and Cancelled    (158,500)   18.66 
Outstanding, September 30, 2011    20,000  $ 3.24 
Options granted    —      —    
Exercised    —      —    
Forfeited and Cancelled    —      —    
Outstanding, March 31, 2012    20,000  $ 3.24 
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The following table summarizes options outstanding and exercisable at March 31, 2012:
 
Range of Exercise
Prices  

Outstanding as of
March 31, 2012  

Remaining
Contractual Life in Years  

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price  

Exercisable as of
March 31, 2012  

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

$3.24  20,000 9.30 $3.24 —   $3.24
 20,000 9.30 $3.24 —   $3.24

All of our outstanding options vest over a three-year period at a rate of one-third per year upon the annual anniversary date of the grant and expire ten years
from the grant date if they are not exercised. Upon exercise of stock options, it is our policy to first issue shares from treasury stock, then to issue new shares.
Unexercised stock options expire by July 2021.

8. SECURITIES AND EQUITY INVESTMENTS
Investment in EnerTech Capital Partners II L.P.
Our investment in EnerTech was approximately 2% of the overall ownership in EnerTech at March 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011. As such, we accounted
for this investment using the cost method of accounting.

EnerTech’s investment portfolio periodically results in unrealized losses reflecting a possible, other-than-temporary impairment of our investment. If the facts
arise that lead us to determine that any unrealized losses are not temporary, we would write-down our investment in EnerTech through a charge to other
expense in the period of such determination. The carrying value of our investment in EnerTech at March 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011 was $1,003 and
$1,003, respectively, and is currently recorded as a component of Other Non-Current Assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. The following table presents
the reconciliation of the carrying value and unrealized gains (losses) to the fair value of the investment in EnerTech as of March 31, 2012 and September 30,
2011:
 

   March 31,   September 30,  
   2012    2011  
Carrying value   $ 1,003     $ 1,003 
Unrealized gains (losses)    94      —    
Fair value   $ 1,097     $ 1,003 

On December 31, 2011, EnerTech’s general partner, with the consent of the fund’s investors, extended the fund through December 31, 2012. The fund will
terminate on this date unless extended by the fund’s valuation committee. The fund may be extended for another one-year period through December 31, 2013
with the consent of the fund’s valuation committee.

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
401(k) Plan
In November 1998, we established the Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan (the “401(k) Plan”). All full-time IES employees are
eligible to participate on the first day of the month subsequent to completing thirty days of service and attaining age twenty-one. Participants become vested
in our matching contributions following three years of service.
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On February 13, 2009, we suspended company matching cash contributions to employee’s contributions due to the significant impact the economic
recession has had on the Company’s financial performance. We made no contributions to the 401(k) plan for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan
Under the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan certain employees are permitted to defer a portion (up to 75%) of their base salary and/or bonus for a Plan
Year. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion, credit one or more participants with an employer deferral
(contribution) in such amount as the Committee may choose (“Employer Contribution”). The Employer Contribution, if any, may be a fixed dollar amount, a
fixed percentage of the participant’s compensation, base salary, or bonus, or a “matching” amount with respect to all or part of the participant’s elective
deferrals for such plan year, and/or any combination of the foregoing as the Committee may choose.

On February 13, 2009, we suspended Company matching cash contributions to employee’s contributions due to the significant impact the economic
recession has had on the Company’s financial performance. We made no contributions to the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan for the three months
ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 respectively.

Post Retirement Benefit Plans
Certain individuals at one of the Company’s locations are entitled to receive fixed annual payments that reach a maximum amount, as specified in the related
agreements, for a ten year period following retirement or, in some cases, the attainment of 62 years of age. We recognize the unfunded status of the plan as
part of current liabilities and non-current liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheet. Benefits vest 50% after ten years of service, which increases by
10% per annum until benefits are fully vested after 15 years of service. We had an unfunded benefit liability of $746 and $597 recorded as of March 31, 2012
and 2011 respectively.

10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair Value Measurement Accounting
This disclosure relates to the activity for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, including transfers of assets and liabilities between
Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy and the separate presentation of purchases, sales, issuances and settlements of assets and liabilities within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. In addition, we provide enhanced disclosure of the valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair value measurements
within Level 2 and Level 3 when applicable.

Fair value is considered the price to sell an asset, or transfer a liability, between market participants on the measurement date. Fair value measurements
assume that the asset or liability is (1) exchanged in an orderly manner, (2) the exchange is in the principal market for that asset or liability, and (3) the market
participants are independent, knowledgeable, able and willing to transact an exchange. Fair value accounting and reporting establishes a framework for
measuring fair value by creating a hierarchy for observable independent market inputs and unobservable market assumptions and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. Considerable judgment is required to interpret the market data used to develop fair value estimates. As such, the estimates presented
herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be realized in a current exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation
methods could have a material effect on the estimated fair value.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2012 are summarized in the following table by the type of inputs
applicable to the fair value measurements:
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    Total Fair Value   
Quoted Prices

(Level 1)   

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs (Level 2)   

Significant
Unobservable

(Level 3)  
Money market accounts   $ 8,817  $ 8,817   —      —   
Executive Savings Plan assets    548   548   —       —    
Executive Savings Plan liabilities    (541)   (541)   —       —    
Total   $ 8,824  $ 8,824   —       —    

Below is a description of the inputs used to value the assets summarized in the preceding table:
Level 1 — Inputs represent unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets exchanged in active markets.
Level 2 — Inputs include directly or indirectly observable inputs other than Level 1 inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets exchanged in active or
inactive markets; quoted prices for identical assets exchanged in inactive markets; and other inputs that are considered in fair value determinations of the
assets.
Level 3 — Inputs include unobservable inputs used in the measurement of assets. Management is required to use its own assumptions regarding unobservable
inputs because there is little, if any, market activity in the assets or related observable inputs that can be corroborated at the measurement date.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal Matters
From time to time we are a party to various claims, lawsuits and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. We maintain various
insurance coverage to minimize financial risk associated with these proceedings. None of these proceedings, separately or in the aggregate, are expected to
have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. With respect to all such proceedings, we record reserves when it is
probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. We expense routine legal costs related to these proceedings as
they are incurred.

The following is a discussion of our significant legal matters:

Ward Transformer Site
One of our subsidiaries has been identified as one of more than 200 potentially responsible parties (PRPs) with respect to the clean-up of an electric
transformer resale and reconditioning facility, known as the Ward Transformer Site, located in Raleigh, North Carolina. The facility built, repaired,
reconditioned and sold electric transformers from approximately 1964 to 2005. We did not own or operate the facility but a corporation that we acquired in
July 1999 is believed to have sent transformers to the facility during the 1990’s. During the course of its operation, the facility was contaminated by
Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs), which also have been found to have migrated off the site.

Four PRPs have commenced clean-up of on-site contaminated soils under an Emergency Removal Action pursuant to a settlement agreement and
Administrative Order on Consent entered into between the four PRPs and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in September 2005. We are not a
party to that settlement agreement or Order on Consent. In April 2009, two of these PRPs, Carolina Power and Light Company and Consolidation Coal
Company, filed suit against us and most of the other PRPs in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of North Carolina (Western Division) to contribute
to the cost of the clean-up. In addition to the on-site clean-up, the EPA has selected approximately 50 PRPs to which it sent a Special Notice Letter in late
2008 to organize the clean-up of soils off site and address contamination of groundwater and other miscellaneous off-site issues. We were not a recipient of
that letter.

Based on our investigation to date, there is evidence to support our defense that our subsidiary contributed no PCB contamination to the site. In addition, we
have tendered a demand for indemnification to the former owner of the acquired corporation that may have transacted business with the facility. As of
March 31, 2012, we have not recorded a reserve for this matter, as we believe the likelihood of our responsibility for damages is not probable and a potential
range of exposure is not estimable.
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Risk Management
We retain the risk for workers’ compensation, employer’s liability, automobile liability, general liability and employee group health claims, resulting from
uninsured deductibles per accident or occurrence which are subject to annual aggregate limits. Our general liability program provides coverage for bodily
injury and property damage. Losses up to the deductible amounts are accrued based upon our known claims incurred and an estimate of claims incurred but
not reported. As a result, many of our claims are effectively self-insured. Many claims against our insurance are in the form of litigation. At March 31, 2012,
we had $7,207 accrued for insurance liabilities. We are also subject to construction defect liabilities, primarily within our Residential segment. As of
March 31, 2012, we had reserved $402 for these claims.

Some of the underwriters of our casualty insurance program require us to post letters of credit as collateral. This is common in the insurance industry. To date,
we have not had a situation where an underwriter has had reasonable cause to effect payment under a letter of credit. At March 31, 2012, $8,182 of our
outstanding letters of credit were utilized to collateralize our insurance program.

Surety
Many customers, particularly in connection with new construction, require us to post performance and payment bonds issued by a surety. Those bonds
provide a guarantee to the customer that we will perform under the terms of our contract and that we will pay our subcontractors and vendors. If we fail to
perform under the terms of our contract or to pay subcontractors and vendors, the customer may demand that the surety make payments or provide services
under the bond. We must reimburse the sureties for any expenses or outlays they incur on our behalf. To date, we have not been required to make any
reimbursements to our sureties for bond-related costs.

As is common in the surety industry, sureties issue bonds on a project-by-project basis and can decline to issue bonds at any time. We believe that our
relationships with our sureties will allow us to provide surety bonds as they are required. However, current market conditions, as well as changes in our
sureties’ assessment of our operating and financial risk, could cause our sureties to decline to issue bonds for our work. If our sureties decline to issue bonds
for our work, our alternatives would include posting other forms of collateral for project performance, such as letters of credit or cash, seeking bonding
capacity from other sureties, or engaging in more projects that do not require surety bonds. In addition, if we are awarded a project for which a surety bond is
required but we are unable to obtain a surety bond, the result can be a claim for damages by the customer for the costs of replacing us with another contractor.

As of March 31, 2012, the estimated cost to complete our bonded projects was approximately $75,430. We evaluate our bonding requirements on a regular
basis, including the terms offered by our sureties. On May 7, 2010 we entered into a new surety agreement. We believe the bonding capacity presently
provided by our current sureties is adequate for our current operations and will be adequate for our operations for the foreseeable future. As of March 31,
2012, we had outstanding $3,959 to collateralize our obligations to certain of our previous sureties (as is included in Other Non-Current Assets in our
Consolidated Balance Sheet). Posting letters of credit in favor of our sureties reduces the borrowing availability under our Revolving Credit Facility.

Other Commitments and Contingencies
Some of our customers and vendors require us to post letters of credit as a means of guaranteeing performance under our contracts and ensuring payment by
us to subcontractors and vendors. If our customer has reasonable cause to effect payment under a letter of credit, we would be required to reimburse our
creditor for the letter of credit. At March 31, 2012, $630 of our outstanding letters of credit was to collateralize our vendors.

On January 9, 2012, we entered into a settlement agreement with regard to $2,000 of collateral held by a surety who previously issued construction payment
and performance bonds for us. The agreement called for a total settlement of $2,200 to be paid in monthly installments through February 2013. In the event
of default, we are entitled to file and execute upon an agreed judgment in our favor in the amount of $2,450. To date, we have received payments of $175;
however, the payment due on April 30, 2012 has not been received as of the filing of this Form 10-Q. We are currently negotiating revised payment terms
with the surety and have not filed the agreed judgment. Collection of this debt is deemed probable, but there is a risk of loss ranging from $0 to $1,825, the
recorded value as of the filing of this Form 10-Q. Conversely, there is potential for additional other income of $450 under the terms of the agreed judgment
offset by associated legal fees. To date, we have made no adjustment to the outstanding receivable balance, which was $1,975 as of March 31, 2012, and, in
any event, intend to aggressively pursue full payment. In the event we are unsuccessful in
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(All Amounts in Thousands Except Share Amounts)
 
negotiating revised payment terms acceptable to us or the surety otherwise fails to make payment to us, we intend to file the agreed judgment in the amount
of $2,450, less payments made to the date of such filing. The amount of the agreed judgment is subject to interest at the rate of 5.0% per annum.

Between October 2004 and September 2005, we sold all or substantially all of the assets of certain of our wholly-owned subsidiaries. As these sales were
assets sales, rather than stock sales, we may be required to fulfill obligations that were assigned or sold to others, if the purchaser is unwilling or unable to
perform the transferred liabilities. If this were to occur, we would seek reimbursement from the purchasers. These potential liabilities will continue to diminish
over time. To date, we have not been required to perform on any projects sold under this divestiture program.

From time to time, we may enter into firm purchase commitments for materials such as copper or aluminum wire which we expect to use in the ordinary course
of business. These commitments are typically for terms less than one year and require us to buy minimum quantities of materials at specific intervals at a fixed
price over the term. As of March 31, 2012, we had no such open purchase commitments.

12. RESTATEMENT
Restatement
The September 30, 2011 consolidated financial statements included in our Original Form 10-K filed on December 20, 2011 contained errors primarily related
to the understatement of our vacation accrual that should have been recorded at September 30, 2008 and in each subsequent annual and interim period to
September 30, 2011. Additionally, for all restated periods we recorded other immaterial adjustments. These adjustments included, but were not limited to,
recording billing, payroll and other accruals, and the associated revenue impacts, in the proper accounting period. Accordingly, the September 30, 2011
consolidated financial statements, and all quarterly periods therein, were restated to properly record these transactions and other immaterial adjustments.
Refer to our amended form 10-K/A for a more detailed explanation. In addition, we have restated the Statement of Cash Flows and segment information for
the three months and six months ended March 31, 2011 to correct for these errors in these financial statements.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations in conjunction with our audited consolidated
financial statements, the related notes, and management’s discussion and analysis included in our annual report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended
September 30, 2011. This discussion contains forward-looking statements and involves numerous risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to the
risk factors discussed in the “Risk Factors” section of our annual report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended September 30, 2011, and in the “Disclosures
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements”, and elsewhere in this quarterly report on form 10-Q. Actual results may differ materially from those contained in
any forward-looking statements.

All dollar values reported in this section are reported in thousands of dollars unless otherwise specified.

Critical Accounting Policies
Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our condensed consolidated financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with GAAP. Preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

We have identified the accounting principles that we believe are most critical to our reported financial status by considering accounting policies that involve
the most complex or subjective decisions or assessments. These accounting policies are those related to revenue recognition, the assessment of goodwill
impairment, our allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, the recording of our self-insurance liabilities and our estimation of the valuation allowance for
deferred tax assets. These accounting policies, as well as others, are described in Part 2. Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data – Note 2,
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in our annual report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended September 30, 2011.

SALE OF FACILITIES
Sale of Non-Strategic Manufacturing Facility
On November 30, 2010, a subsidiary of the Company sold substantially all the assets and certain liabilities of a non-strategic manufacturing facility engaged
in manufacturing and selling fabricated metal buildings housing electrical equipment, such as switchgears, motor starters and control systems, to Siemens
Energy, Inc. As part of this transaction, Siemens Energy, Inc. also acquired certain real property where the fabrication facilities are located from another
subsidiary of the Company. The purchase price of $10,086 was adjusted to reflect working capital variances. The transaction was completed on December 10,
2010 at which time we recognized a gain of $6,763.

Sale of Non-Core Electrical Distribution Facility
On February 28, 2011, Key Electrical Supply, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, sold substantially all the assets and certain liabilities of a
non-core electrical distribution facility engaged in distributing wiring, lighting, electrical distribution, power control and generators for residential and
commercial applications to Elliot Electric Supply, Inc. The purchase price of $6,676 was adjusted to reflect working capital variances. The loss on this
transaction was immaterial.

Seasonality and Quarterly Fluctuations
Results of operations from our Residential construction segment are subject to seasonal fluctuations, depending on weather trends, with typically higher
revenues generated during spring and summer and lower revenues generated during fall and winter. The Communications and Commercial & Industrial
segments of our business are less subject to seasonal trends, as work in these segments generally is performed inside structures protected from the weather. Our
service and maintenance business is generally not affected by seasonality. In addition, the construction industry has historically been highly cyclical. Our
volume of business may be adversely affected by declines in construction projects resulting from adverse regional or national economic conditions. Quarterly
results may also be materially affected by the timing of new construction projects. Accordingly, operating results for any fiscal period are not necessarily
indicative of results that may be achieved for any subsequent fiscal period.
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The 2011 Restructuring Plan
In the second quarter of our 2011 fiscal year, we began a new restructuring program (the “2011 Restructuring Plan”) that was designed to consolidate
operations within our Commercial & Industrial business. Pursuant to the 2011 Restructuring Plan we will either sell or close certain underperforming
facilities within our Commercial & Industrial operations. The 2011 Restructuring Plan is a key element of our commitment to return the Company to
profitability.

The facilities directly affected by the 2011 Restructuring Plan are in several locations throughout the country, including Arizona, Florida, Iowa,
Massachusetts, Louisiana, Nevada and Texas. These facilities were selected due to current business prospects and the extended time frame needed to return
the facilities to a profitable position. We expect that closure costs could range from $4,500 to $5,500 in the aggregate. Closure costs associated with the 2011
Restructuring Plan include equipment and facility lease termination expenses, incremental management consulting expenses and severance costs for
employees. As part of our restructuring charges for the six months ended March 31, 2012 within our Commercial & Industrial segment we recognized $35 in
severance costs, $764 in consulting services, and $65 in costs related to lease terminations. The Company is in the process of winding down these facilities.
As the Company concludes the wind-down and closure process for each of these facilities, their respective results of operations will be reclassified and
presented within future statements of operations as “Discontinued Operations.” US GAAP does not permit an earlier reclassification.

At March 31, 2012, the estimated costs to complete the 14 projects remaining at these facilities totaled approximately $3,372; of which all but approximately
$392 has been subcontracted to other electrical contractors. Historically, the wind-down operations negatively impacted liquidity due to their
underperformance. For fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, the last reporting period prior to the impact of winding-down, these facilities experienced
revenue of $62,968, selling general & administrative expenses of $9,590, and an operating loss of $9,536. For fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 these
wind down facilities experienced revenue of $43,736, selling general and administrative expenses of $5,019 and an operating loss of $18,084. Included
within the 2011 selling general and administrative expenses is a $2,850 settlement of an outstanding receivable, written off in a prior period. Excluding this
settlement during the quarter ended March 31, 2011, operating loss for these wind-down facilities was $20,934. In many cases, the losses increased as these
facilities experienced cost associated with the wind-down. These costs include, subcontracting previously self-performed work, difficulties in retaining
experienced staff, charges associated with facility lease termination, employee severance and retention agreements and professional fees.

To date, we have completed approximately 90% of the backlog of these facilities that existed at the adoption of the restructuring plan. As a result, revenues
and selling general & administrative expenses have been substantially reduced. For the six months ended March 31, 2012, these wind-down facilities
experienced revenues of $6,217, selling general & administrative expenses of $502 and an operating loss of $3,196. The operating loss for the six months
ended March 31, 2012 is being negatively impacted by the operational difficulties associated with the wind-down as detailed above. Additionally, to date we
have recognized the majority of the expected severance, retention and lease termination charges.

The completion of the wind-down of these facilities will eliminate the revenues, as well as the associated operating losses and negative liquidity impact. The
majority of costs associated with these facilities are directly related to their distinct operations. As such, the majority of the costs will be eliminated upon the
completion of the wind-down process. The go-forward operations will benefit from the elimination of negative financial impact of these underperforming
operations.

The following table presents the results of operations for the 2011 Restructuring Plan for the three months ended March 31, 2012:
 

   
Three Months

Ended   
Three Months

Ended  

   March 31, 2012  
March 31, 2011

(Restated)  
Revenues   $ 3,095  $ 11,991 
Gross profit (loss)    (570)   (1,395) 
Selling, general, & administrative expenses    341   (1,421) 
Restructuring    236   —    
Loss / (gain) from sale of assets    (62)   (1) 
Income (loss) from operations   $ (1,085)  $ 27 
Other data:    

Working capital   $ 3,752  $ 19,141 
Total assets:   $ 6,529  $ 24,374 
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THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2012 COMPARED TO THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

Results of Operations
We report our operating results across three operating segments: Communications, Residential and Commercial & Industrial. Expenses associated with our
Corporate office are classified as a fourth segment. The following table presents selected historical results of operations of IES and subsidiaries.
 

   Three Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
      Restated  
   $   %   $   %  
   (Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)  

Revenues   $112,807   100.0%  $118,326   100.0% 
Cost of services    100,221   88.8%   112,999   95.5% 
Gross profit    12,586   11.2%   5,327   4.5% 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    15,222   13.5%   14,072   11.9% 
Gain on sale of assets    (87)   (0.1)%   (87)   (0.1)% 
Restructuring charges    264   0.2%   —      —  % 

Loss from operations    (2,813)   (2.4)%   (8,658)   (7.3)% 
Interest and other expense, net    536   0.5%   544   0.5% 

Loss from operations before income taxes    (3,349)   (2.9)%   (9,202)   (7.8)% 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes    82   0.1%   929   0.8% 

Net loss   $ (3,431)   (3.0)%  $ (10,131)   (8.6)% 

Revenues
 

   Three Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
      Restated  
   $    %   $    %  
   (Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)  
Communications   $ 29,024    25.7%  $ 23,368    19.7% 
Residential    29,628    26.3%   26,310    22.2% 
Commercial & Industrial    54,155    48.0%   68,648    58.1% 
Total Consolidated   $112,807    100.0%  $118,326    100.0% 

Consolidated revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2012 were $5,519 less than the three months ended March 31, 2011, a decrease of 4.7%.

Our Communications segment revenues increased $5,656 during the three months ended March 31, 2012, a 24.2% increase compared to the three months
ended March 31, 2011. We recognized revenues of $5,305 that can be attributed to the commencement of work on a significant project from a long term
customer during the first quarter 2012. The markets we serve have expanded rapidly as the current and expected demand for information and data storage has
increased. We have a long history of serving our customers in such mission critical environments, resulting in our increased revenue as these markets
continue to expand.

Our Residential segment revenues increased $3,318 during the three months ended March 31, 2012, an increase of 12.6% as compared to the three months
ended March 31, 2011. Approximately $3,324 of the revenues during the three months ended March 31, 2011 were attributable to the non-core electrical
distribution facility that was sold in February 2011. Excluding
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the revenues from the divested facility, our Residential segment showed an increase, quarter over quarter, of $6,642. The increase is due primarily to an
increase in our single-family revenues of approximately $3,300. While the strongest growth was seen in our Texas markets, which represents approximately
75% of our single-family sales, we experienced similar growth as a percentage increase in our other markets as well. Additionally, our Residential segment
entered into the solar installation market in late 2011, concentrated primarily in California. Solar installation revenue was approximately $2,400. Multi-
family revenues increased approximately $1,100, attributable to an influx of private financing options over HUD/FHA backed financing, and increased
apartment occupancy rates creating a demand for the construction of apartment units.

Our Commercial & Industrial segment revenues decreased $14,493 during the three months ended March 31, 2012, a decrease of 21.1% compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2011 primarily due to a decrease in revenues associated with the Company’s wind-down facilities described in the 2011
Restructuring Plan. Revenues associated with the wind-down facilities described in the 2011 Restructuring Plan totaled $3,135, a decrease of $8,856 when
compared to the three months ended March 31, 2011. Excluding the revenues associated with the wind-down facilities, revenues decreased $5,897. We
experienced a decline in revenues in our Oregon and Nebraska facilities of approximately $2,000 and $1,800, respectively, due to the completion of large
projects in both locations. Additionally, we are in the process of winding down our Baltimore facility and, as such, have experienced a reduction in revenues
of approximately $1,400.

Gross Profit
 

   Three Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
      Restated  
   $    %   $   %  
   (Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)  
Communications   $ 3,780    13.0%  $ 2,424   10.4% 
Residential    4,531    15.3%   3,596   13.8% 
Commercial & Industrial    4,273    7.9%   (612)   -1.0% 
Corporate    2    0.0%   (81)   -0.1% 
Total Consolidated   $ 12,586    11.2%  $ 5,326   4.5% 

Our consolidated gross profit percentage increased to 11.2% during the three months ended March 31, 2012, as compared to 4.5% during the three months
ended March 31, 2011.

Our Communications segment gross profit increased $1,356 during the three months ended March 31, 2012 as compared to the three months ended
March 31, 2011. The increase in gross profit was driven by increased revenues coupled with an increase in gross margin. Gross profit was negatively impacted
by the Baltimore office, which had a negative gross profit of $276 and $246 during the three months ended March 31, 2012, and March 31, 2011,
respectively. The Baltimore location was selected for closure based upon current business performance and the extended time frame needed to return the
operation to profitability.

Our Residential segment gross profit increased $935 during the three months ended March 31, 2012, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2011.
Gross margin in the Residential segment increased to 15.3% during the three months ended March 31, 2012. Single family operations comprised the largest
increase in gross profit at $1,100, attributed to the stability in the price of copper wire as well as an overall increase in revenue volume. Additionally, an
increase of approximately $200 of the gross profit increase can be attributed to our entrance into the solar installation market. The remaining increase in gross
profit results from decreased insurance claim development costs, offset by reduced margins in the multi-family operations due to increased competition and
job specific difficulties encountered in the three months ended March 31, 2012.

Our Commercial & Industrial segment gross profit increased $4,885 during the three months ended March 31, 2012, as compared to the three months ended
March 31, 2011. The negative gross margins associated with the wind-down operations described in the Company’s 2011 Restructuring Plan resulted in $537
of negative gross profit during the three months ended March 31, 2012, compared to a negative gross profit of $1,395 during the during the three months
ended March 31, 2011. The negative gross margins recorded for the wind-down operations described in the Company’s 2011 Restructuring Plan are
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primarily due to higher costs associated with either subcontracting or assigning certain contracts to other electrical subcontractors together with the extensive
operating difficulties relating to labor productivity following the notice of the potential sale or closure of these facilities. The Baltimore facility, within
Commercial & Industrial segment, had a negative gross profit of $235 during the three months ended March 31, 2012, an increase of $12, as compared to the
three months ended March 31, 2011. The Baltimore location was selected for closure based upon current business performance and the extended time frame
needed to return the operation to profitability. Excluding the gross profit associated with the wind-down facilities, gross profit increased $4,060. During the
three months ended March 31, 2011, we experienced losses on contracts in our Colorado and Nebraska facilities, totaling approximately $2,600.
Additionally, we benefited from improved performance in Oregon and Virginia facilities during the three months ended March 31, 2012, that totaled
approximately $1,400.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
 

   Three Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
      Restated  
   $    %   $    %  
   (Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)  
Communications   $ 3,337    11.5%  $ 2,309    9.9% 
Residential    4,533    15.3%   4,508    17.1% 
Commercial & Industrial    5,150    9.5%   3,837    5.6% 
Corporate    2,202    —      3,418    —    
Total Consolidated   $15,222    13.5%  $ 14,072    11.9% 

Selling, general and administrative expenses include costs not directly associated with performing work for our customers. These costs consist primarily of
compensation and benefits related to corporate and division management, occupancy and utilities, training, professional services, information technology
costs, consulting fees, travel and certain types of depreciation and amortization. We allocate certain corporate selling, general and administrative costs across
our segments as we believe this more accurately reflects the costs associated with operating each segment.

During the three months ended March 31, 2012, our selling, general and administrative expenses were $15,222, an increase of $1,150, or 8.2%, as compared
to the three months ended March 31, 2011. Included in the three months ended March 31, 2011 is a recovery of $2,850 settlement of an outstanding
receivable, written off in a prior period. Excluding this, the selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $1,700, and as a percent of revenue to
13.5% in 2012 from 14.3% in 2011.

Our Communications segment experienced an increase of $1,028 in selling, general and administrative expenses during the three months ended March 31,
2012 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2011. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues in the Communications
segment increased to 11.5% of segment revenue during the three months ended March 31, 2012. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses
is primarily due to higher expenses associated with our expansion of facilities in Southern California. Additionally, bad debt expenses increased due
primarily to the wind-down operations of our Baltimore facility.

Our Residential segment experienced an increase of $25 in selling, general and administrative expenses during the three months ended March 31, 2012
compared to the three months ended March 31, 2011. Approximately $899 of the selling, general and administrative expenses included in the three months
ended March 31, 2011 is attributable to the non-core electrical distribution facility that was sold in February 2011. Removing this from the comparison, the
actual change, period over period, was an increase of $924. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues in the Residential
segment declined to 15.3% of segment revenue during the three months ended March 31, 2012. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses
is attributable to approximately $400 in employee incentives and approximately $200 in expenses to enter the solar installation market.

Our Commercial & Industrial segment experienced an increase of $1,313 in selling, general and administrative expenses during the three months ended
March 31, 2012 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2011. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues in the
Commercial & Industrial segment increased to 9.5% of segment revenue during the three months ended March 31, 2012. The selling, general and
administrative expenses associated with the
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wind-down operations described in the Company’s 2011 Restructuring Plan were $316 during the three months ended March 31, 2012, compared to $1,429,
during the three months ended March 31, 2011, net of a $2,850 settlement of an outstanding receivable, written off in a prior period. The selling, general and
administrative expenses recorded for the wind-down operations described in the Company’s 2011 Restructuring Plan are primarily due to professional fees
and lease termination expenses. The Baltimore facility within the Commercial & Industrial segment had selling, general and administrative expenses of $291
during the three months ended March 31, 2012, a decrease of $177, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2011. The Baltimore location was
selected for closure based upon current business performance and the extended time frame needed to return the operation to profitability. Excluding the
selling general and administrative expenses associated with the wind-down facilities, selling general and administrative expenses decreased $1,360,
primarily due to the consolidation of redundant support functions within the Louisiana and Virginia facilities.

Our Corporate segment experienced a decrease of $1,216 in selling, general and administrative expenses during the three months ended March 31, 2012
compared to the three months ended March 31, 2011. This decrease is primarily attributable to a significant reduction in our corporate office operations,
including a decrease in headcount and related employment expenses, decreased professional fees and depreciation.

Restructuring Charges
The following table presents the elements of costs incurred for the 2011 Restructuring Plan.
 

   Three Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
   (In thousands)  
Severance compensation   $ (34)  $ —    
Consulting and other charges    281   —    
Lease termination costs    17   —    
Total restructuring charges   $ 264  $ —    

Interest and Other Expense, net
 

   Three Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
   (In thousands)  
Interest expense   $ 459  $ 491 
Deferred financing charges    84   84 
Total interest expense    543   575 
Interest income    (8)   (24) 
Other (income) expense, net    1   (7) 
Total interest and other expense, net   $ 536  $ 544 

During the three months ended March 31, 2012, we incurred interest expense of $459 primarily comprised of the Tontine Term Loan and the Insurance
Financing Agreements (as defined in “Working Capital”), an average letter of credit balance of $8,812 under the Revolving Credit Facility (as defined in
“Working Capital”) and an average unused line of credit balance of $31,188. This compares to interest expense of $491 for the three months ended March 31,
2011, on a debt balance primarily comprised of the Tontine Term Loan, an average letter of credit balance of $13,087 under the Revolving Credit Facility
and an average unused line of credit balance of $46,913.

For the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, we earned interest income of $8 and $24, respectively, on the average Cash and Cash Equivalents
balances of $17,500 and $32,846, respectively.

Provision for Income Taxes
On May 12, 2006, we had a change in ownership as defined in Internal Revenue Code Section 382. As such, our net operating loss utilization after the
change date will be subject to Section 382 limitation for federal income taxes and some state income taxes. We have provided valuation allowance on all net
operating losses where it is determined it is more likely than not that the net operating loss will expire without being utilized.
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The provision for income taxes decreased from $929 for the three months ended March 31, 2011 to $82 for the three months ended March 31, 2012. The
decrease in expense for the three months ended March 31, 2012 is attributable to a decrease in loss from operations before income taxes.

SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2012, COMPARED TO SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

Results of Operations
We report our operating results across three operating segments: Communications, Residential and Commercial & Industrial. Expenses associated with our
Corporate office are classified as a fourth segment. The following table presents selected historical results of operations of IES and subsidiaries.
 

   Six Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
      Restated  
   $   %   $   %  
   (Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)  

Revenues   $228,101   100.0%  $228,137   100.0% 
Cost of services    204,606   89.7%   211,752   92.8% 
Gross profit    23,495   10.3%   16,385   7.2% 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    28,596   12.5%   32,724   14.3% 
Gain on sale of assets    (70)   —  %   (6,816)   (3.0)% 
Asset impairment    —      —  %   3,551   1.6% 
Restructuring charges    864   0.4%   —      —  % 

Loss from operations    (5,895)   (2.6)%   (13,074)   (5.7)% 
Interest and other expense, net    1,009   0.4%   1,103   0.5% 

Loss from operations before income taxes    (6,904)   (3.0)%   (14,177)   (6.2)% 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes    250   0.1%   253   0.1% 

Net loss   $ (7,154)   (3.1)%  $ (14,430)   (6.3)% 
 

   Six months ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
      Restated  
   $    %   $    %  
   (Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)  
Communications   $ 55,126    24.2%  $ 43,290    19.0% 
Residential    58,900    25.8%   52,354    22.9% 
Commercial & Industrial    114,075    50.0%   132,493    58.1% 
Total Consolidated   $228,101    100.0%  $228,137    100.0% 

Consolidated revenues for the six months ended March 31, 2012 were $36 less than the six months ended March 31, 2011, an decrease of 0.0%.

Our Communications segment revenues increased $11,836 during the six months ended March 31, 2012, a 27.3% increase compared to the six months ended
March 31, 2011. We recognized revenues of $5,443 that can be attributed to commencing work on a significant project during the first quarter 2012. This is
indicative of the expanding market for network infrastructure. The markets we serve have expanded rapidly as the current and expected demand for
information and data storage has increased. We have a long history of serving our customers in such mission critical environments, resulting in our increased
revenue as these markets continue to expand.
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Our Residential segment revenues increased $6,546 during the six months ended March 31, 2012, an increase of 12.5% as compared to the six months ended
March 31, 2011. Approximately $8,271 of the revenue during the six months ended March 31, 2011 is attributable to the non-core electrical distribution
facility that was sold in February 2011. Removing this revenue from the comparison, our Residential segment showed an increase period over period of
$14,817. The increase is due primarily to an increase in our single-family revenues of approximately $7,000. While the strongest growth was seen in our
Texas markets, which represents approximately 75% of our single-family sales, we experienced similar growth as a percentage increase in our other markets as
well. Additionally, our Residential segment entered into the solar installation market in late 2011, concentrated primarily in California. Solar installation
revenue was approximately $3,800. Multi-family revenues increased approximately $4,600, attributable to an influx of private financing options over
HUD/FHA backed financing, and increased apartment occupancy rates, creating a demand for the construction of apartment units.

Revenues in our Commercial & Industrial segment decreased $18,418 during the six months ended March 31, 2012, a decrease of 13.9% as compared to the
six months ended March 31, 2011, primarily due to a decrease in revenues associated with the Company’s wind-down facilities described in the 2011
Restructuring Plan. Revenues associated with the wind-down facilities described in the 2011 Restructuring Plan totaled $6,218, a decrease of $19,393 when
compared to the six months ended March 31, 2011. Excluding the revenues associated with the wind-down facilities, revenues increased $1,015. We are in
the process of winding down our Baltimore facility, and as such have experienced a reduction in revenues of approximately $1,159. Revenues from the
remaining Commercial & Industrial locations remained relatively flat.

Gross Profit
 

   Six Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
      Restated  
   $   %   $   %  

   (Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)   
Communications   $ 7,119   12.9%  $ 5,630   13.0% 
Residential    9,179   15.6%   8,132   15.5% 
Commercial & Industrial    7,205   6.3%   2,704   2.0% 
Corporate    (8)   0.0%   (81)   -0.1% 
Total Consolidated   $ 23,495   10.3%  $ 16,385   7.2% 

Our consolidated gross profit percentage increased to 10.3% during the six months ended March 31, 2012, as compared to 7.2% during the six months ended
March 31, 2012.

Our Communications segment gross profit increased $1,489 during the six months ended March 31, 2012, as compared to the six months ended March 31,
2011. The increase in gross profit is attributed to more efficient execution on projects, an increase in higher margin service work and a reduction in overhead
costs from the consolidation of administrative functions to one location.

Our Residential segment gross profit increased $1,047 during the six months ended March 31, 2012, as compared to the six months ended March 31, 2011.
Gross margin percentage in the Residential segment increased to 15.6% during the six months ended March 31, 2012. Single family operations comprised the
largest increase in gross profit at $2,300, attributed to the stability in the price of copper wire as well as an overall increase in revenue volume. The increase in
gross profit from single family operations was offset by a negative gross margin of approximately $50 attributed to our entrance into the solar installation
market. The remaining increase in gross profit resulted from decreased insurance claim development costs, offset by reduced margins in the multi-family
operations due to increased competition and job specific difficulties encountered in the six months ended March 31, 2012.

Our Commercial & Industrial segment gross profit increased $4,504 during the six months ended March 31, 2012, as compared to the six months ended
March 31, 2011. The negative gross margins associated with the wind-down operations described in the Company’s 2011 Restructuring Plan resulted in
$1,928 of negative gross profit during the six months ended
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March 31, 2012 compared to a negative gross profit of $1,311 during the during the six months ended March 31, 2011. The negative gross margins recorded
for the wind-down operations described in the Company’s 2011 Restructuring Plan are primarily due to higher costs associated with either subcontracting or
assigning certain contracts to other electrical subcontractors together with the extensive operating difficulties relating to labor productivity following the
notice of the potential sale or closure of these facilities. The Baltimore facility within Commercial & Industrial had a negative gross profit of $919 during the
six months ended March 31, 2012, an increase in negative gross profit of $894, as compared to the six months ended March 31, 2011. The Baltimore location
was selected for closure based upon current business performance and the extended time frame needed to return the operation to profitability. Excluding the
gross profit associated with the wind-down facilities, gross profit increased $5,150. During the six months ended March 31, 2011, we experienced losses on
contracts in Colorado and Nebraska facilities totaling approximately $4,100. These losses were not repeated during the six months ended March 31, 2012.

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses
 

   Six Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
      Restated  
   $    %   $    %  
   (Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)  
Communications   $ 6,334    11.5%  $ 4,617    10.7% 
Residential    8,946    15.2%   12,564    24.0% 
Commercial & Industrial    9,654    8.5%   8,006    6.0% 
Corporate    3,662    —      7,537    —    
Total Consolidated   $28,596    12.5%  $ 32,724    14.3% 

Selling, general and administrative expenses include costs not directly associated with performing work for our customers. These costs consist primarily of
compensation and benefits related to corporate and division management, occupancy and utilities, training, professional services, information technology
costs, consulting fees, travel and certain types of depreciation and amortization.

During the six months ended March 31, 2012, our selling, general and administrative expenses were $28,596, a decrease of $4,128, or 12.6%, as compared to
the six months ended March 31, 2011. Included in the six months ended March 31, 2011 is a recovery of $2,850 settlement of an outstanding receivable,
written off in a prior period in our Commercial & Industrial segment. Excluding this, the selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $6,978.

Our Communications segment experienced an increase of $1,171 in selling, general and administrative expenses during the six months ended March 31,
2012 compared to the six months ended March 31, 2011. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues in the Communications
segment increased to 11.5% of segment revenue during the six months ended March 31, 2012. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses is
primarily due to higher expenses associated with our expansion of facilities in Southern California, including litigation expenses. Additionally, bad debt
expenses increased due primarily to the wind down operations of our Baltimore facility.

Our Residential segment experienced a decrease of $3,618 in selling, general and administrative expenses during the six months ended March 31, 2012
compared to the six months ended March 31, 2011. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues in the Residential segment
declined to 15.2% of segment revenue during the six months ended March 31, 2012. Approximately $1,993 of the selling, general and administrative
expenses included in the six months ended March 31, 2011 is attributable to the non-core electrical distribution facility that was sold in February 2011.
Removing this from the comparison, the actual change period over period was an increase of $1,625. The increase in selling, general and administrative
expenses is attributable to approximately $900 in employee incentives, additional compensation expense of $200, and approximately $300 in expenses to
enter the solar installation market.

Our Commercial & Industrial segment experienced an increase of $1,648 in selling, general and administrative expenses during the six months ended
March 31, 2012 compared to the six months ended March 31, 2011. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues in the
Commercial & Industrial segment increased to 8.5% of segment
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revenue during the six months ended March 31, 2011. The selling, general and administrative expenses associated with the wind-down operations described
in the Company’s 2011 Restructuring Plan were $502 during the six months ended March 31, 2012, compared to $3,059, during the six months ended
March 31, 2011, net of a $2,850 settlement of an outstanding receivable, written off in a prior period. The selling, general and administrative expenses
recorded for the wind-down operations described in the Company’s 2011 Restructuring Plan are primarily due to professional fees and lease termination
expenses. The Baltimore facility within Commercial & Industrial had selling general and administrative expenses of $570 during the six months ended 2012,
a decrease of $347, as compared to the six months ended March 31, 2011. The Baltimore location was selected for closure based upon current business
performance and the extended time frame needed to return the operation to profitability. Excluding the selling general and administrative expenses
associated with the wind-down facilities, selling general and administrative expenses increased $1,355, primarily due to increased incentive compensation.

Our Corporate segment experienced a decrease of $3,875 in selling, general and administrative expenses during the six months ended March 31, 2012
compared to the six months ended March 31, 2011. This decrease is primarily attributable to a reduction in our corporate office operations, including a
decrease in headcount and related employment expenses, and decreased depreciation. Additionally, there were several severance agreements in 2011 totaling
$562 compared to $428 in 2012.

Restructuring Charges
In conjunction with our 2011 Restructuring Plan we recognized the following costs during the six months ended March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2011:
 

   Six Months Ended March 31,  
   2012    2011  
   (In thousands)  
Severance compensation   $ 35   $ —    
Consulting and other charges    727    —    
Lease termination costs    102    —    
Total restructuring charges   $ 864   $ —    

Interest and Other Expense, net
 

   Six Months Ended March 31,  
   2012   2011  
   (In thousands)  
Interest expense   $ 913  $ 1,006 
Deferred financing charges    175   169 
Total interest expense    1,088   1,175 
Interest income    (15)   (49) 
Other (income) expense, net    (65)   (24) 
Total interest and other expense, net   $ 1,008  $ 1,102 

During the six months ended March 31, 2012, we incurred interest expense of $1,088 on an average debt balance of $10,000 primarily comprised of
the Tontine Term Loan (as defined in “Working Capital”) and the Insurance Financing Agreements (as defined in “Working Capital”), an average
letter of credit balance of $8,796 under the Revolving Credit Facility (as defined in “Working Capital”) and an average unused line of credit balance
of $39,356. This compares to interest expense of $1,175 for the six months ended March 31, 2011, on an average debt balance of $10,000 primarily
comprised of the Tontine Term Loan and the Insurance Financing Agreements, an average letter of credit balance of $14,508 under the Revolving
Credit Facility and an average unused line of credit balance of $45,487.

For the six months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, we earned interest income of $65 and $24 respectively, on the average Cash and Cash Equivalents
balances of $19,590 and $32,384, respectively.
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Provision for Income Taxes
On May 12, 2006, we had a change in ownership as defined in Internal Revenue Code Section 382. As such, our net operating loss utilization after the
change date will be subject to Section 382 limitation for federal income taxes and some state income taxes. We have provided valuation allowance on all net
operating losses where it is determined it is more likely than not that the net operating loss will expire without being utilized.

The provision for income taxes for the six months ended March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2012 was $250.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
As of March 31, 2012, we had cash and cash equivalents of $17,766, working capital of $56,649 and $22,009 of available capacity under our Revolving
Credit Facility. We anticipate that the combination of cash on hand, cash flows and available capacity under our Revolving Credit Facility will provide
sufficient cash to enable us to meet our working capital needs, debt service requirements and capital expenditures for property and equipment through the
next twelve months. Our ability to generate cash flow is dependent on many factors, including demand for our services, the availability of projects at margins
acceptable to us, the ultimate collectability of our receivables, and our ability to borrow on our amended Revolving Credit Facility, if needed. We were not
required to test our covenants under our Revolving Credit Facility in the period as our Total Liquidity was greater than the minimum under our Revolving
Credit Facility. Had we been required to test our covenants, we would have failed at March 31, 2012.

We continue to closely monitor the financial markets and general national and global economic conditions. To date, we have experienced no loss or lack of
access to our invested cash or cash equivalents; however, we can provide no assurances that access to our invested cash and cash equivalents will not be
impacted in the future by adverse conditions in the financial markets.

Operating Activities
Our cash flow from operations is not only influenced by cyclicality, demand for our services, operating margins and the type of services we provide, but can
also be influenced by working capital needs such as the timing of our receivable collections. Working capital needs are generally lower during our fiscal first
and second quarters due to the seasonality that we experience in many regions of the country.

Operating activities used net cash of $7,799 during the six months ended March 31, 2012, as compared to $11,444 of net cash used in the six months ended
March 31, 2011. The decrease in the use of cash from operating activities in the six months ended March 31, 2012 is due primarily to a decrease in the net
loss of $7,276, a decrease in working capital usage of $2,691 and a decrease of depreciation expense of $2,360, offset by the $2,850 recovery and $6,811
gain on sale of assets in 2011.

Investing Activities
In the six months ended March 31, 2012, net cash used from investing activities was $978 as compared to $15,682 of net cash provided by investing
activities in the six months ended March 31, 2011. Investing activities in the six months ended March 31, 2012 included $998 used for capital expenditures,
and an $8,812 increase to restricted cash required by our credit facility. Investing activities in the six months ended March 31, 2011 included $16,287 from
the sale of facilities, partially offset by $755 used for capital expenditures.

Financing Activities
Financing activities used net cash of $9,034 in the six months ended March 31, 2012 compared to usage of $455 used in the six months ended March 31,
2011. Financing activities included $128 and $390 used for repayments of debt in the six months ended March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2011, respectively.

Surety
Many customers, particularly in connection with new construction, require us to post performance and payment bonds issued by a surety. These bonds
provide a guarantee to the customer that we will perform under the terms of our contract and that we will pay our subcontractors and vendors. If we fail to
perform under the terms of our contract or to pay subcontractors and vendors, the customer may demand that the surety make payments or provide services
under the bond. We must reimburse the sureties for any expenses or outlays they incur on our behalf. To date, we have not been required to make any
reimbursements to our sureties for bond-related costs.
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As is common in the surety industry, sureties issue bonds on a project-by-project basis and can decline to issue bonds at any time. We believe that our
relationships with our sureties will allow us to provide surety bonds as they are required. However, current market conditions, as well as changes in our
sureties’ assessment of our operating and financial risk, could cause our sureties to decline to issue bonds for our work. If our sureties decline to issue bonds
for our work, our alternatives would include posting other forms of collateral for project performance, such as letters of credit or cash, seeking bonding
capacity from other sureties, or engaging in more projects that do not require surety bonds. In addition, if we are awarded a project for which a surety bond is
required but we are unable to obtain a surety bond, the result could be a claim for damages by the customer for the costs of replacing us with another
contractor.

As of March 31, 2012, the estimated cost to complete our bonded projects was approximately $75,430. We believe the bonding capacity presently provided
by our sureties is adequate for our current operations and will be adequate for our operations for the foreseeable future. As of March 31, 2012, we utilized
$3,986 of cash (as is included in “Other Non-Current Assets” in our Consolidated Balance Sheet) as collateral for certain of our previous bonding programs.

Bonding Capacity
At March 31, 2012, we had adequate surety bonding capacity under our surety agreements. Our ability to access this bonding capacity is at the sole
discretion of our sureties. As of March 31, 2012, the expected cumulative cost to complete for projects covered by our sureties was $75,430. We believe we
have adequate remaining available bonding capacity to meet our current needs, subject to the sole discretion of our sureties. For additional information,
please refer to Note 11 “Commitments and Contingencies – Surety” of this form 10-Q.

The Revolving Credit Facility
On May 12, 2006, we entered into a Loan and Security Agreement (the “Loan and Security Agreement”), for a revolving credit facility (the “Revolving
Credit Facility”) with Bank of America, N.A. and certain other lenders. On May 7, 2008, we renegotiated the terms of our Revolving Credit Facility and
entered into an amended agreement with the same financial institutions. On April 30, 2010, we renegotiated the terms of, and entered into an amendment to,
the Loan and Security Agreement, pursuant to which the maturity date was extended to May 12, 2012. In connection with the amendment, we incurred an
amendment fee of $0.2 million.

On December 15, 2011, we renegotiated the terms of, and entered into an amendment to, the Loan and Security Agreement without incurring termination
charges. Under the terms of the amended Revolving Credit Facility, the size of the facility was reduced to $40,000 and the maturity date was extended to
November 12, 2012. Further, we were required to cash collateralize all of our letters of credit issued by the banks. The cash collateral is added to the
borrowing base calculation at 100% throughout the term of the agreement. The Revolving Credit Facility requires that we maintain a fixed charge coverage
ratio of not less than 1.0:1.0 at any time that our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability is less than $25,0000and, thereafter, until
such time as our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability has been at least $25,000 for a period of 60 consecutive days. Additionally,
if there are any loans outstanding on or after the April 30, 2012, the Company’s EBITDA for the period from October 1, 2011 through March 31, 2012, may
not exceed a negative EBITDA threshold of $2,500 and we will be required to have a cumulative fixed charge coverage ratio of at least 1.0:1.0 at all times
beginning April 1, 2012 to maintain any borrowings under the agreement. The measurement period for this additional test for borrowings begins with the
monthly operating results for April 2012 and adds the monthly operating results for each month thereafter to determine the cumulative test during such time
as revolving loans are outstanding. Failure to meet this performance test will result in an immediate event of default. The amended agreement also calls for
cost of borrowings of 4.0% over LIBOR per annum. Cost for letters of credit are the same as borrowings and also include a 25 basis point “fronting fee.” All
other terms and conditions remain unchanged. In connection with the amendment, we incurred an amendment fee of $0.1 million which, together with
unamortized balance of the prior amendment is being amortized using the straight line method through November 12, 2012.

On May 11, 2012, we renegotiated the terms of, and entered into an amendment to, the Loan and Security Agreement without incurring termination charges.
Under the terms of the amended Revolving Credit Facility, we are subject to covenant that requires we maintain a fixed coverage ratio of not less than 1.0:1.0
at any time that our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability is less than $30,000 and, thereafter, until such time as our aggregate
amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability has been at least $30,000 for a period of 60 consecutive days. Additionally, if there are any loans
outstanding on or after March 31, 2012, April 30, 2012 and May 31, 2012, the Company’s EBITDA may not exceed a negative EBITDA threshold
established for each month within this period. The negative EBITDA threshold is measured from October 1, 2011 until the months ended March 31,
2012, April 30, 2012 and May 31, 2012. The negative EBITDA threshold for March 31, 2012, April 30, 2012 and May 31, 2012 is $4,700, $4,850 and
$4.725, respectively. To extent we
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exceed the negative thresholds for March 31, 2012 April 30, 2012 and May 31, 2012 the Company will prohibited form borrowing until such time we do not
exceed the negative threshold in a subsequent month. As of June 30, 2012, the Company’s negative EBITDA threshold for the period from October 1, 2011
through June 30, 2012, may not exceed $4,475 and we will be required to have a cumulative fixed charge coverage ratio of at least 1.0:1.0 at all times
beginning July 31, 2012 to maintain any borrowings under the agreement. The measurement period for this additional test for borrowings begins with the
monthly operating results for July l, 2012 and adds the monthly operating results for each month thereafter to determine the cumulative test during such time
as revolving loans are outstanding. Failure to meet this performance test will result in an immediate event of default. The negative EBITDA threshold
excludes any gain or loss related to a surety settlement described in Note 11 – Commitments and Contingencies.

The Revolving Credit Facility is guaranteed by our subsidiaries and secured by first priority liens on substantially all of our subsidiaries’ existing and future
acquired assets, exclusive of collateral provided to our surety providers. The Revolving Credit Facility contains customary affirmative, negative and
financial covenants. The Revolving Credit Facility also restricts us from paying cash dividends and places limitations on our ability to repurchase our
common stock.

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility may not exceed a “borrowing base” that is determined monthly by our lenders based on available collateral,
primarily certain accounts receivables and cash collateral supporting our letters of credit. None of our inventories qualified for borrowing availability after we
sold the inventory attributable to our Key Electrical Supply company in February 2011. Under the terms of the Revolving Credit Facility in effect as of
March 31, 2012, interest for loans and letter of credit fees is based on our Total Liquidity, which is calculated for any given period as the sum of average
daily availability for such period plus average daily unrestricted cash on hand for such period as follows:

At March 31, 2012, we had $22,009 available to us under the Revolving Credit Facility with no outstanding borrowings. We had $8,812 in outstanding
letters of credit fully collateralized with restricted cash.

As of March 31, 2012, we were subject to the financial covenant under the Revolving Credit Facility requiring that we maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio
of not less than 1.0:1.0 at any time that our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability is less than $25.0 million and, thereafter, until
such time as our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability has been at least $25.0 million for a period of 60 consecutive days. As of
March 31, 2012, our Total Liquidity was in excess of $25.0 million; had our Total Liquidity been less than $25.0 million at March 31, 2012, we would not
have met the required 1.0:1.0 fixed charge coverage ratio test.

The Tontine Term Loan
On December 12, 2007, we entered into a $25.0 million senior subordinated loan agreement (the “Tontine Term Loan”) with Tontine Capital Partners, L.P., a
related party. The Tontine Term Loan bears interest at 11.0% per annum and is due on May 15, 2013. Interest is payable quarterly in cash or in-kind at our
option. Any interest paid in-kind will bear interest at 11.0% in addition to the loan principal. On April 30, 2010, we prepaid $15.0 million of principal on the
Tontine Term Loan. On May 1, 2010, Tontine assigned the Tontine Term Loan to TCP Overseas Master Fund II, L.P. We may repay the Tontine Term Loan at
any time prior to the maturity date at par, plus accrued interest without penalty. The Tontine Term Loan is subordinated to our Revolving Credit Facility. The
Tontine Term Loan is an unsecured obligation of the Company and its subsidiary borrowers. The Tontine Term Loan contains no financial covenants or
restrictions on dividends or distributions to stockholders.

Controlling Shareholder
On October 3, 2011, the Company entered into an amended and restated letter agreement with James M. Lindstrom, to memorialize Mr. Lindstrom’s
appointment, effective October 3, 2011, as Chief Executive Officer and President of the Company. Mr. Lindstrom previously served in such capacities on an
interim basis since June 2011 and has served as Chairman of the Company’s Board of Directors since February 2011. Mr. Lindstrom was an employee of
Tontine from 2006 until October 2011. In his capacity as Chief Executive Officer and President, Mr. Lindstrom has the ability to affect the composition of the
Company’s management and influence the business operations of the Company or extraordinary transactions outside the normal course of the Company’s
business.

On July 21, 2011, Tontine filed an amended Schedule 13D indicating its ownership level of 57.4% of the Company’s outstanding common stock. Although
Tontine has not indicated any plans to alter its ownership level, should Tontine reconsider its investment plans and sell its controlling interest in the
Company, a change in ownership would occur. A change in ownership, as defined by Internal Revenue Code Section 382, could reduce the availability of net
operating losses for federal and state income tax purposes. Furthermore, a change in control would trigger the change of control provisions in a
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number of our material agreements, including our Revolving Credit Facility, bonding agreements with our sureties and employment contracts with certain
officers and employees of the Company. On April 30, 2010, we prepaid $15,000 of the original $25,000 principal outstanding on the Tontine Term Loan;
accordingly $10,000 remains outstanding under the Tontine Term Loan.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations
As is common in our industry, we have entered into certain off-balance sheet arrangements that expose us to increased risk. Our significant off-balance sheet
transactions include commitments associated with non-cancelable operating leases, letter of credit obligations, firm commitments for materials and surety
guarantees.

We enter into non-cancelable operating leases for many of our vehicle and equipment needs. These leases allow us to retain our cash because we do not own
the vehicles or equipment and we pay a monthly lease rental fee. At the end of the lease, we have no further obligation to the lessor. We may cancel or
terminate a lease before the end of its term. Typically, we would be liable to the lessor for various lease cancellation or termination costs and the difference
between the fair market value of the leased asset and the implied book value of the leased asset as calculated in accordance with the lease agreement.

Some of our customers and vendors require us to post letters of credit as a means of guaranteeing performance under our contracts and ensuring payment by
us to subcontractors and vendors. If our customer has reasonable cause to effect payment under a letter of credit, we would be required to reimburse our
creditor for the letter of credit. At March 31, 2012, $630 of our outstanding letters of credit were utilized to collateralize our customers and vendors.

Some of the underwriters of our casualty insurance program require us to post letters of credit as collateral, as is common in the insurance industry. To date,
we have not had a situation where an underwriter has had reasonable cause to effect payment under a letter of credit. At March 31, 2012, $8,182 of our
outstanding letters of credit were utilized to collateralize our insurance programs.

From time to time, we may enter into firm purchase commitments for materials such as copper wire and aluminum wire, among others, which we expect to use
in the ordinary course of business. These commitments are typically for terms less than one year and require us to buy minimum quantities of materials at
specified intervals at a fixed price over the term. As of March 31, 2012, we did not have any open purchase commitments.

Many of our customers require us to post performance and payment bonds issued by a surety. Those bonds guarantee the customer that we will perform under
the terms of a contract and that we will pay subcontractors and vendors. In the event that we fail to perform under a contract or pay subcontractors and
vendors, the customer may demand the surety to pay or perform under our bond. Our relationship with our sureties is such that we will indemnify the sureties
for any expenses they incur in connection with any of the bonds they issue on our behalf. To date, we have not incurred any costs to indemnify our sureties
for expenses they incurred on our behalf.

As of March 31, 2012, our future contractual obligations due by September 30 of each of the following fiscal years include (in thousands) (1):
 

   
Less than

1 Year    
1 to 3
Years    

3 to 5
Years    

More than
5 Years    Total  

Long-term debt obligations   $1,367   $10,000   $ —      $ —      $11,367 
Operating lease obligations   $4,575   $ 5,897   $590   $ 967   $12,029 
Capital lease obligations   $ 233   $ 161   $ —      $ —      $ 394 
Total   $6,175   $16,058   $590   $ 967   $23,790 
 
(1) The tabular amounts exclude the interest obligations that will be created if the debt and capital lease obligations are outstanding for the periods

presented.
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Our other commitments expire by September 30 of each of the following fiscal years (in thousands):
 

   
FYE

Sept 30, 2012   
FYE

Sept 30, 2013   
FYE

Sept 30, 2014   Thereafter   Total  
Standby letters of credit   $ 5,216   $ 3,596   $ —      $ —      $8,812 
Other commitments   $ —      $ —      $ —      $ —      $ —    
Total   $ 5,216   $ 3,596   $ —      $ —      $8,812 

Outlook
We anticipate that the combination of cash on hand, cash flows and available capacity under our Revolving Credit Facility will provide sufficient cash to
enable us to meet our working capital needs, debt service requirements and capital expenditures for property and equipment through the next twelve months.
We expect that our capital expenditures will range from $1.5 to $2.0 million for the fiscal year ending on September 30, 2012. Our ability to generate cash
flow is dependent on our successful finalization of our restructuring efforts and many other factors, including demand for our products and services, the
availability of projects at margins acceptable to us, the ultimate collectability of our receivables and our ability to borrow on our amended Revolving Credit
Facility. For additional information see “Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” in Part I of this Form 10-Q.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Management is actively involved in monitoring exposure to market risk and continues to develop and utilize appropriate risk management techniques. Our
exposure to significant market risks includes fluctuations in commodity prices for copper, aluminum, steel and fuel. Commodity price risks may have an
impact on our results of operations due to the fixed price nature of many of our contracts. We are also exposed to interest rate risk with respect to our
outstanding debt obligations on the Revolving Credit Facility. For additional information see “Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” in Part I
of this Form 10-Q.

Commodity Risk
Our exposure to significant market risks includes fluctuations in commodity prices for copper, aluminum, steel and fuel. Commodity price risks may have an
impact on our results of operations due to fixed nature of many of our contracts. During 2011 and 2010, commodity prices were volatile, and we experienced
overall increases in prices of copper, aluminum, steel and fuel. Over the long-term, we expect to be able to pass along a portion of these costs to our
customers, as market conditions in the construction industry will allow.

Interest Rate Risk
We are also exposed to interest rate risk, with respect to our outstanding revolving debt obligations as well as our letters of credit.

The following table presents principal or notional amounts and related interest rates by fiscal year of maturity for our debt obligations at March 31, 2012
(Dollar amounts in thousands):
 
   2012    2013    2014    2015    2016    Thereafter   Total  
Debt Obligations - Fixed Rate:               

Tontine Term Loan (11%)   $ —      $10,000   $—      $—      $—      $ —      $10,000 
Capital Lease (22%)   $158   $ 317   $ 26    —       —       —       501 

Fair Value of Debt:               
Fixed Rate   $146   $10,708   $ 19   $—      $—      $ —      $10,873 

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure controls and procedures
In connection with the restatements discussed in the explanatory note and in Notes 17 and 18 of our financial statements in our Form 10-K/A, under the
direction of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we reevaluated our disclosure controls and procedures. We identified two material
weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting with respect to our inter-departmental communications processes at our Corporate office and
within our Commercial & Industrial segment. Specifically, the Company’s policies, procedures and personnel resources responsible for both our vacation
accrual and certain other expenses, including software amortization, were not effective. Solely as a result of these material weaknesses, we concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2011.

During the first and second quarters of our 2012 fiscal year, we improved our inter-departmental communications at our Corporate office and Commercial &
Industrial segment. We additionally implemented staffing changes, which we believe remediated each material weakness. In connection with the filing of our
Form 10-K/A under the direction of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we have evaluated our disclosure controls and procedures as
currently in effect, including the remedial actions discussed above, and we have concluded that, as of the March 30, 2012 filing of our December 31, 2011
Form 10-Q, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
As mentioned above, there were two material weaknesses that we identified. The first relates to a control deficiency at our corporate office that resulted in the
inadequate reporting of certain software amortization expense. The corporate office failed to provide adequate managerial oversight, did not perform a timely
review of the useful lives of its assets and did not engage in adequate inter-department communications between the IT and finance departments. The
deficiency was identified by corporate management as of September 30, 2011, resulting in material revision of software amortization expense among
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the quarterly periods of fiscal 2011. The second material weakness identified relates to a control deficiency at our Commercial & Industrial segment that
resulted in the under accrual of vacation expense. The vacation accrual for salaried employees within this segment was understated due to inadequate inter-
department communications between the human resources and finance departments. This deficiency impacted our vacation accrual balance for all annual and
interim periods from September 30, 2008 through 2011. The deficiency was identified by corporate management during the close process within our first
quarter of fiscal year 2012, resulting in the restatement of our September 30, 2011 Form 10-K.

Remediation of Material Weakness
Management believes it has remediated the material weakness related to the review of the useful lives of its assets. The remediation included enhanced inter-
department communication, additional internal financial review and a specific review of all material software currently capitalized and amortized during the
company’s financial close process.

Management believes it has remediated the material weakness related to the required vacation accrual. The remediation included updating the accrual
process at the Commercial & Industrial segment to include the previously absent employees as of the first quarter in fiscal year 2012 and enhanced inter-
departmental communication as well as the hiring of an additional resource in the finance department within our Commercial & Industrial segment.

As of the March 30, 2012 filing of the December 31, 2011 form 10-Q we believe the steps identified above have remediated the identified material
weaknesses. Apart from the completion of this remediation process, there have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the quarter ended March 31, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. Legal Proceedings
For further information regarding legal proceedings, see Note 11, “Commitments and Contingencies — Legal Matters” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
Except as set forth below, there have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed under Item 1A “Risk Factors” in our annual report on form 10-K /A
for the year ended September 30, 2011.

Availability of net operating losses may be reduced by a change in ownership.
A change in ownership, as defined by Internal Revenue Code Section 382, could reduce the availability of net operating losses for federal and state income
tax purposes. Should Tontine be considered under Internal Revenue Code Section 382 to sell or exchange all or a portion of its position in IES, a change in
ownership could occur. In addition, a change in ownership could occur resulting from the purchase of common stock by an existing or a new 5% shareholder
as defined by Internal Revenue Code Section 382. Due to the complex factual determinations involved with the determination of a change in ownership
under Internal Revenue Code Section 382 and the regulations promulgated thereunder, it is possible for such a change in ownership to occur without our
knowledge. Currently, we have approximately $286.5 million of federal net operating losses that are available to use to offset taxable income, exclusive of
net operating losses from the amortization of additional tax goodwill. In addition, we have approximately $12.6 million of net operating loss not currently
available due to the limitation imposed by Internal Revenue Code Section 382, exclusive of net operating losses from the amortization of additional tax
goodwill, and will be available to offset taxable income in future periods. Should a change in ownership occur, all net operating losses incurred prior to the
change in ownership would be subject to limitation imposed by Internal Revenue Code Section 382 and this would substantially reduce the amount of net
operating losses currently available to offset taxable income. In addition, the net operating losses for federal and state purposes have not been reviewed by
the Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing authorities. Should the Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing authority successfully challenge the
amount or the availability of net operating losses, the potential benefit of the net operating losses could be substantially reduced.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
None.
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Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
None.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserved)

Item 5. Other Information
None.

Item 6. Exhibits
 

3.1
 

Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-8 filed on May 12, 2006)

3.2
 

Bylaws of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-
8, filed on May 12, 2006)

*10.1  Sublease Agreement between Tontine Associates, LLC and IES Shared Services, Inc, dated March 29, 2012

*10.2  Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 11, 2012

*31.1  Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of James M. Lindstrom, Chief Executive Officer(1)

*31.2  Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Robert W. Lewey, Chief Financial Officer(1)

*32.1  Section 1350 Certification of James M. Lindstrom, Chief Executive Officer(1)

*32.2  Section 1350 Certification of Robert W. Lewey, Chief Financial Officer(1)

**101.INS  XBRL Instance Document

**101.SCH XBRL Schema Document

**101.LAB XBRL Label Linkbase Document

**101.PRE  XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document

**101.DEF  XBRL Definition Linkbase Document

**101.CAL XBRL Calculated Linkbase Document
 
* Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized, who has signed this report on behalf of the registrant and as the principal financial officer of the
registrant.

INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
 
Date: May 14, 2012   By:  /s/ ROBERT W. LEWEY

   Robert W. Lewey
   Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 10.1

SUBLEASE

This Sublease (“Sublease”), made as of the 29th day of March, 2012 by and between TONTINE ASSOCIATES LLC, a Delaware limited liability
partnership, having an office at 55 Railroad Avenue, Greenwich, Connecticut (hereinafter referred to as “Sublessor”), and IES SHARED SERVICES, INC, a
Delaware corporation, having an office at 4801 Woodway Drive, Suite 200-E, Houston, Texas (hereinafter referred to as “Sublessee”).

RECITALS

A. Pursuant to a certain Lease dated March 29th, 2012 (as such prime lease may be amended from time to time, the “Prime Lease”), by and between
Sublessor, as lessee, SOUND SHORES PARTNER LLC, as Lessor (“Prime Lessor”), Sublessor leased from Prime Lessor certain premises commonly known as
Suite 304, One Sound Shore Drive, Greenwich, Connecticut (the “Premises”) and located on the real property more particularly described in the Prime Lease
(the “Property”).

B. Sublessor desires to sublet to Sublessee a portion of the Premises consisting of 1,740 sq. ft. as outlined on the floor plan attached hereto as Exhibit A
and made a part hereof (the “Subleased Premises”), and Sublessee desires to sublet the Subleased Premises from Sublessor, all in accordance with the terms,
covenants and conditions herein set forth.

C. Sublessor and Sublessee shall share and have non-exclusive, common access to and use of, the Common Areas (as hereinafter defined), on the terms
and conditions hereinafter set forth. The “Common Areas” shall include, without limitation, the waiting area, hallways, kitchen, restrooms mail/copy room,
conference rooms and six (6) parking spaces in the Property’s covered parking facilities, as the foregoing areas may be changed, reduced or expanded from
time to time in Sublessor’s sole discretion (provided, however, that such change or reduction shall not unreasonable limit Sublessee’s use of the Subleased
Premises), and including such other areas as Sublessor may designate as Common Areas from time to time.

AGREEMENT

IN CONSIDERATION of the foregoing recitals, the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, and other good and valuable considerations, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby mutually acknowledged, it is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

1. DEMISE, POSSESSION AND TERM. Sublessor hereby subleases to Sublessee, and Sublessee hereby subleases from Sublessor, the Subleased Premises
for a term (the “Term”) commencing on April 1, 2012 or upon the Commencement Date as defined in the Prime Lease, whichever date is later (the “Sublease
Commencement Date”) and ending on March 31, 2014 (the “Sublease Expiration Date”), unless extended or sooner terminated as provided herein.
Sublessee shall be deemed to be in possession of the Subleased Premises as of the Sublease Commencement Date. Sublessee acknowledges and agrees that
Sublessor has the option to renew the Prime Lease (“Renewal Option”) for one (1) two-year term (“Renewal Term”) to be exercised within 6 months prior to
the termination of the Sublease Expiration Date (“Option Exercise Period”). Landlord agrees to notify Tenant in writing of its intention to exercise the
Renewal Option at least 30 days prior to the Option Exercise Period. If Sublessee (i) gives written notice to Sublessor, within such 30 days period,



of its intention to renew this Sublease, which renewal shall be for the Renewal Term, or (ii) fails to reply to Sublessor within such 30 day period, and provided
Sublessor does exercise the Renewal Option, the Term of this Sublease shall automatically be extended to expire on the same date as the Prime Lease.
Notwithstanding such automatic extension, Sublessor may require Sublessee to, and Sublessee shall, enter into an amendment to this Sublease documenting
the extension of the Term. Sublessor and Sublessee further agree that if the term of the Prime Lease terminates early or expires for any reason whatsoever, the
Term of this Sublease shall automatically expire as of the date of such early termination or expiration of the Prime Lease.

2. RENT.
2.1. Base Rent. Commencing on April 1, 2012 and continuing thereafter on the first day of each and every calendar month during the term of this

Sublease, Sublessee shall pay to Sublessor, as base rent for the Subleased Premises, monthly rent (the “Base Rent”) for each calendar month or portion thereof
during the Term of this Sublease as follows:
 

Dates:   Monthly Base Rent:
April 1, 2012 – March 31, 2013   $5,763.75
April 1, 2013 – March 31, 2014   $5,908.75

If Sublessor exercises the renewal option under the Prime Lease, and subject to the terms of Paragraph 1 above, the term of this Sublease shall automatically
and without further action of the parties be deemed to be extended to be coterminous with the Prime Lease, and the Base Rent payable for this Sublease
during the renewal term(s) shall be equal to the current Base Rent payable by Sublessee under the Sublease with $1.00 per rentable square foot annual
increase for each of the following years over the previous year’s rent for the balance of the Option Term, as that term is defined in the Prime Lease.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, and provided Sublessee is not in default under the Sublease beyond any applicable notice and
cure period, Sublessee shall receive a rental credit in the amount of $5,365.00, which Sublessee shall apply in one (1) installment towards the first (1 ) month
rent following the Sublease Commencement Date.

2.2. Additional Rent. Sublessee shall pay to Sublessor, as additional rent for the Subleased Premises (the following, collectively, “Additional Rent”), a
sum equal to forty-seven percent (47%) of: (a) all amounts due as “Additional Charges” under the Prime Lease or any other fees and charges payable under
the Prime Lease (whether payable to Prime Lessor or any other party) with respect to the term of the Prime Lease, including, without limitation, Tax Payments
(as defined in the Prime Lease), Operating Expenses (as defined in the Prime Lease), and utilities (to the extend not already included in the Base Rent) (b) all
amounts, fees or charges paid or incurred by Sublessor in connection with the performance of any obligations under the Prime Lease, including, without
limitation, the maintenance, repair and replacement of all or any part of the Property as set forth in Section 14 of the Prime Lease, and (c) in addition to all
costs incurred to comply with the Prime Lease, all amounts, fees or charges paid or incurred by Sublessor in connection with the operation, maintenance,
repair, replacement and upkeep of the Common Areas, including, without limitation, all amounts paid or incurred for office supplies; maintenance, repair and
replacement of photocopiers, scanners, fax machines; stocking and maintaining the kitchen; furniture repair or replacement; and any janitorial or custodial
maintenance beyond what is required in the Prime Lease. During the Term, Additional Rent payable pursuant to this Section 2.2 shall be paid in monthly
installments in amounts determined by Sublessor and at such other intervals as are required under the Prime Lease, on or before the last business day of each
calendar month during the Term, or within five (5) business days after receipt of a written request from Sublessor for payments that are not regularly
scheduled monthly payments under the Prime Lease.
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2.3. Security Deposit. Intentionally deleted.

2.4. General Provisions Regarding Payments. All Base Rent, Additional Rent (including, without limitation, late charges) and other fees, charges or
amounts due from Sublessee under this Sublease (collectively, the “Rent”) shall be paid promptly when due, without notice or demand, and without offset or
deduction for any reason whatsoever, to Sublessor at its address set forth in the notice provisions below, or to such other person or at such other address as
Sublessor may designate by written notice to Sublessee. After an Event of Default described in Section 12.1(a) herein, interest at the Default Rate (as defined
herein) shall be payable on any past due Rent from the date due through the date received by Sublessor (or its designated payee). Any such interest shall be
paid by Sublessee promptly upon demand.

3. SUBORDINATION; ATTORNMENT.
3.1. Subject to Lease.

3.1.1 This Sublease is subject and subordinate in all respects to the Prime Lease, and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein,
no provision hereof granting Sublessee any power, right, benefit or privilege shall be operative or effective, if and to the extent that exercise or enjoyment of
the same would constitute or result in any breach of or default under, or termination of, the Prime Lease.

3.1.2 In the event of any termination or expiration of the Prime Lease during the Term for any reason, this Sublease shall automatically terminate
contemporaneously with termination or expiration of the Prime Lease, and Sublessor and Sublessee shall be relieved of all liability and obligation hereunder,
except for liabilities and obligations (i) under the indemnification and default provisions (including, without limitation, Sections 12, 13.2, 14 and 15) hereof,
(ii) accruing prior to such termination, or (iii) on account of acts, omissions, conditions or circumstances occurring or obtaining prior to such termination. The
liabilities and obligations, identified in clauses (i) through (iii) above are referred to herein as “Surviving Obligations.”

3.1.3 Sublessee acknowledges receipt of a complete and accurate copy of the Prime Lease, and represents that it has read and understood the
Prime Lease. In the event of any conflict between the terms and provisions of the Prime Lease and those of this Sublease, the terms and provisions of the
Prime Lease shall control, in all events (except with respect to the amounts of Base Rent and Additional Rent due hereunder). Sublessee shall, at its own cost
and expense, fully observe, perform and comply with all of the obligations of Sublessor, as lessee, under the Prime Lease, to the extent that such obligations
relate to the Subleased Premises or the Common Areas, including, without limitation, obligations as provided in the Prime Lease with respect to use of the
Subleased Premises and the Common Areas, maintenance and alterations of the Subleased Premises and assignment and subletting. Sublessee shall not cause,
or permit its agents, employees, contractors, invitees, subtenants, licensees, concessionaires or assigns (whether or not permitted hereunder) to cause, whether
by act or omission, any breach of, default under or termination of the Prime Lease.
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3.1.4 As to all matters requiring the consent or approval of, or notice to, Prime Lessor under the Prime Lease, Sublessee shall not act without the
prior written consent or approval of, or without notice to, as the case may be, both Prime Lessor and Sublessor. All matters required under the Prime Lease to
be satisfactory to or as prescribed by Prime Lessor shall be satisfactory to or as prescribed by both Prime Lessor and Sublessor.

3.1.5 Sublessor reserves the right to assign all or any part of its interest in this Sublease in accordance with the terms of the Prime Lease.

3.2. Subordination to Mortgage. Sublessee’s interest under this Sublease is and shall be subject and subordinate in all respects to any mortgage, trust
deed or other method of financing now or hereafter placed against the Property, the Subleased Premises or Sublessor’s leasehold estate therein by Sublessor
or, if the Prime Lease so requires, by Prime Lessor. At Sublessor’s request from time to time, Sublessee shall promptly execute and deliver any document or
instrument reasonably required by any such mortgagee or lienholder to further evidence or confirm such subordination.

3.3. Subordination to Easements, Covenants and Restrictions. Sublessee’s interest under this Sublease is and shall be subject and subordinate in all
respects to any easements, operating agreement, declarations of covenants, conditions and restrictions or similar documents of record now or hereafter
affecting the Property or the Subleased Premises.

3.4. Attornment. In the event of a sale or assignment of (i) the Property or a portion thereof which includes the Subleased Premises or (ii) Sublessor’s
leasehold estate therein by Prime Lessor or Sublessor; or if the Property or said leasehold estate come into the possession of a mortgagee or other person,
whether because of a mortgage foreclosure or otherwise, Sublessee shall (a) attorn to the purchaser, assignee, mortgagee or other person, (b) recognize the
purchaser, assignee, mortgagee or other person as Prime Lessor or Sublessor, as the case may be, and (c) execute and deliver upon request any document or
instrument reasonably requested to evidence further or confirm Sublessee’s attornment as set forth herein.

4. REPAIR AND CONFORMITY TO LAW. Sublessee is subleasing the Subleased Premises in “as is”, “with all faults” condition, without any
representation or warranty of any kind from Sublessor, and acknowledges and agrees that Sublessor has no obligation to make any improvements, repairs,
replacements or alterations in the Subleased Premises except that Sublessor shall cause all maintenance, repair and replacement obligations of the lessee
under the Prime Lease to be performed, including as such obligations apply to the Subleased Premises and the Common Areas. Sublessee acknowledges that
neither Sublessor nor any agent of Sublessor has made any representation as to the condition of the Subleased Premises or the suitability of the Subleased
Premises for Sublessee’s intended use. Sublessee represents and warrants that it has made its own inspection of and inquiry regarding the condition of the
Subleased Premises and is not relying on any representation of Sublessor with respect thereto except as may be expressly set forth herein. Sublessee, at its
own expense, shall keep the interior of the Subleased Premises, in neat, clean, safe and sanitary condition, and shall maintain all parts of the Subleased
Premises (and any portion of the Property damaged or destroyed by the act or omission of Sublessee, or its agents, contractors, employees, subtenants,
licensees, invitees, concessionaires or assigns) in good repair and condition, except for ordinary wear and tear. Sublessee will keep, maintain and occupy the
Subleased Premises in conformity with the terms and provisions of the Prime Lease and all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations (including,
without limitation, those relating to building, zoning, health, fire, environmental protection and safety) of duly constituted authorities.
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5. USE. Sublessee shall not allow the Subleased Premises or any Common Areas to be used for any purpose or in any manner that could increase the premium
payable for any insurance thereon, nor for any purpose other than the use(s) permitted under the Prime Lease. Sublessee shall not, at any time, use or occupy,
or suffer or permit anyone to use or occupy, the Subleased Premises, the Common Areas or any portion of the Property, or permit anything to be done in the
Subleased Premises, the Common Areas or any portion of the Property, in any manner that does or may (a) violate any Certificate of Occupancy for the
Subleased Premises or the Property; (b) cause, or be liable to cause, injury to the Subleased Premises, the Common Areas or any portion of the Property, or any
equipment, facilities or systems therein; (c) constitute a violation of the laws and requirements of any public authority or the requirements of insurance
bodies; (d) impair or tend to impair the character, reputation, good will or appearance of the Subleased Premises, the Common Areas or the Property;
(e) impair or tend to impair the proper and economic maintenance, operation, and repair of the Subleased Premises, the Common Areas or any other
improvements, if any, situated on the Property or any equipment, facilities or systems therein; (f) violate any of the covenants and conditions or other
provisions of the Prime Lease; (g) increase the fire hazard of the Subleased Premises, the Common Areas or the Property or any other improvements, if any,
situated on the Property; or (h) disturb or annoy the other occupants or customers of the Property.

5.1 General Use of Common Areas. Sublessee shall have the nonexclusive right to use the Common Areas for the purposes intended, subject to such
reasonable rules and regulations as Sublessor may uniformly establish from time to time. Sublessee shall not interfere with the rights of any or all of
Sublessor, other tenants or licensees, or any other person entitled to use the Common Areas. Sublessor, from time to time, may change any or all of the size,
location, nature and use of any of the Common Areas although such changes may result in inconvenience to Sublessee, so long as such changes do not
materially and adversely affect Sublessee’s use of the Subleased Premises. In addition to the foregoing, Sublessor may, at any time, close or suspend access to
any Common Areas to perform any acts in the Common Areas as, in Sublessor’s reasonable judgment, are required in order to satisfy Sublessor’s obligations
under either or both of this Sublease and the Prime Lease; provided, however, that Sublessor shall use reasonable efforts to limit any disruption of Sublesse’s
use and operation of the Subleased Premises in connection therewith.

6. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING.

6.1. Prohibition. Sublessee shall not (by operation of law or otherwise) sell, assign, mortgage, encumber, pledge, sublease or in any manner transfer or
otherwise dispose of this Sublease or any interest therein, or all or any part of the Subleased Premises nor grant licenses, occupancy rights therein, without
Sublessor’s prior written consent, which consent may be granted or withheld in Sublessor’s sole and absolute discretion. For all purposes of this Sublease, any
transfer of fifty percent (50%) or more of the capital or voting stock of Sublessee (or of the right to vote such stock), and any other change of control (e.g.
transfer or assignment of partnership or membership interest in excess of 50%) of Sublessee, shall be deemed to constitute a disposition of this Sublease.
Consent by Sublessor to any such sale, assignment, mortgage, encumbrance, pledge, sublease, transfer, disposition, license, occupancy or lease (any
“Disposition”) on any one occasion shall not obviate the necessity for obtaining consent to any subsequent Disposition.

6.2. Continuing Liability of Sublessee. If any Disposition occurs (with or without Sublessor’s consent as herein required), Sublessor may collect rent
and other amounts from any assignee, sublessee, licensee or other occupant and apply the same to the Rent reserved by this
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Sublease, but no such Disposition or collection of Rent shall be deemed a consent to such Disposition, or a waiver of any of Sublessee’s obligations under
this Sublease, or an acceptance of such assignee, sublessee, licensee or other occupant as “Sublessee,” or a release of Sublessee from the performance or
payment by Sublessee of any of its covenants, agreements or liabilities contained in this Sublease. Notwithstanding any Disposition (with or without
consent), Sublessee shall remain fully liable for the performance of all terms, covenants and provisions of this Sublease.

7. ALTERATIONS, ADDITIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS. Except as required by Section 4 hereof, no alterations, additions or improvements shall be made
to any part of the Subleased Premises without the prior written consent of Sublessor, which consent may be granted or withheld in Sublessor’s sole and
absolute discretion. All permitted alterations, additions or improvements to the Subleased Premises (“Sublessee’s Work”) shall be made in compliance with
any applicable terms and provisions of the Prime Lease, all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, and at the expiration or termination of the term
of this Sublease for any reason, shall remain for the benefit of Sublessor or shall, at the request of Sublessor, be removed by Sublessee, at Sublessee’s sole cost,
and Sublessee shall repair any damage caused by such removal. All permit, license and similar costs and fees (including, without limitation, costs of
architectural renderings, sign elevation drawings, mechanical plans, and other plans and specifications) required by statute or ordinance and associated with
Sublessee’s Work shall be paid by Sublessee.

8. WAIVER. Except for Sublessor’s gross negligence and intentionally wrongful conduct, Sublessor and its agents and employees shall not be liable for, and,
to the maximum extent permitted by law, Sublessee waives all claims against Sublessor for, damage or injury to persons, property or otherwise, including,
without limitation, lost profits and consequential damages, sustained by Sublessee or any person claiming by, through or under Sublessee resulting from any
accident or occurrence in or upon any portion of the Subleased Premises or the Property, including, without limitation, claims for damage resulting from:
(a) any equipment or appurtenances becoming out of repair; (b) the failure to keep any part of the Property in repair; (c) injury done or caused by wind, water,
or other natural element; (d) any defect in or failure of plumbing, heating or air conditioning equipment, electric wiring, gas or water pipes or equipment,
steam pipes, stairs, porches, railings or walks or the installation or operation thereof; (e) broken glass; (f) the backing up of any sewer pipe or downspout;
(g) the bursting, leaking or running of any tank, tub, washstand, water closet, waste pipe, drain or any other pipe or tank; (h) the escape of steam or hot water;
(i) water, snow or ice upon (or coming through the roof of) the Subleased Premises or the Property; (j) the falling of any fixture, brick, roofing material, plaster
or stucco; (k) damage to or loss by theft or otherwise of property of Sublessee or others; (l) acts or omissions of persons in the Subleased Premises or the
Property, occupants of nearby properties, or any other person; (m) acts or omissions of owners of adjacent or contiguous property or of Sublessor, its agents,
employees, guests and invitees; and (n) non-performance by Prime Lessor of any obligation, covenant or agreement contained in the Prime Lease. All
property of Sublessee kept in the Subleased Premises or in the Property shall be so kept at Sublessee’s sole risk and Sublessee shall and hereby does
indemnify and hold Sublessor and Prime Lessor harmless from any and all claims arising out of damage to the same, including subrogation claims by
Sublessee’s insurance carrier. The foregoing indemnity shall survive the termination or expiration of this Sublease.

9. CASUALTY; CONDEMNATION. If all or any part of the Subleased Premises are damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty, or taken by
condemnation or acquired by sale in lieu thereof, Sublessee shall be bound by any determination called for by the Prime Lease as to untenantability,
materiality of any damage or destruction, or similar matters, whether reached by agreement between
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Prime Lessor and Sublessor or otherwise as provided in the Prime Lease. Without limitation of the foregoing, and for purposes of clarity, this Sublease shall
not be terminated on the basis of a casualty or condemnation event or as a result of a sale in lieu thereof unless the Prime Lease is terminated on account
thereof. Sublessee shall not be entitled to any portion of any condemnation award or sale proceeds, or to any proceeds of any policy of insurance maintained
by Prime Lessor or Sublessor, and shall not assert any separate claim therefor in any proceeding.

10. ENTRY. Sublessor shall have the right to enter upon the Subleased Premises at all reasonable times (and, in the case of any emergency, at any time) to
view the state and condition thereof, or to make or perform any maintenance, repairs or alterations which Sublessor may see fit to make or which may be
required by the Prime Lease and/or this Sublease, or to exercise any right or remedy of Sublessor hereunder, provided that Sublessor shall use reasonable
efforts not to interfere with Sublessee’s business operations.

11. SIGNS. All signage of Sublessee shall comply with the terms and provisions of the Prime Lease and no exterior signage or other signage visible from
outside the Subleased Premises shall be erected or installed without the prior written consent of Sublessor, which consent may be granted or withheld in
Sublessor’s sole and absolute discretion.

12. DEFAULT; REMEDIES.
12.1. Events of Default. It shall constitute an “Event of Default” hereunder if any or all of the following occur: (a) Sublessee fails to pay any Rent

hereunder, and said failure continues for five (5) business days after the Sublessee receives a notice of default from Sublessor; (b) Sublessee makes any
Disposition of any right to or interest in this Sublease or the Subleased Premises, except as expressly permitted by Section 6 hereof; (c) Sublessee fails in the
performance of or compliance with any of the agreements, terms, covenants or conditions in this Sublease (other than those referred to in the foregoing
subparagraphs (a) and (b) of this Section) for a period of twenty (20) days after written notice from Sublessor to Sublessee specifying the items in default, or in
the case of a default which cannot, with due diligence, be cured within said twenty (20) day period, Sublessee fails to proceed within said twenty (20) day
period to cure the same and thereafter to prosecute the curing of such default with due diligence (it being intended in connection with a default not
susceptible of being cured with due diligence within said twenty (20) day period that the time of Sublessee within which to cure the same shall be extended
for up to an additional twenty (20) days if such additional 20-day period is necessary to complete the same with all due diligence); (d) there is instituted
against Sublessee any proceeding in bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization pursuant to any federal or state law now or hereafter enacted, which
proceeding is not dismissed within thirty (30) days after the institution thereof, or any receiver or trustee is appointed for all or any portion of Sublessee’s
business or property, or any execution or attachment is issued against Sublessee or any of Sublessee’s business or property or against the leasehold estate
created hereby; or (e) Sublessee makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or admits its inability to pay its debts as they become due, or is found to be
unable so to pay its debts by any court of competent jurisdiction, or files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or insolvency, or petitions for (or enters into) an
arrangement for reorganization, composition or any other arrangement with Sublessee’s creditors under any federal or state law now or hereafter enacted.

12.2. Remedies. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, Sublessor shall have the immediate right, at its option, to pursue any one or more of the
following remedies: (a) terminate this Sublease; (b) reenter and take possession of the Subleased Premises, and evict Sublessee and remove its property
therefrom; (c) relet the Subleased Premises, and collect and retain all rents, charges, fees and other costs payable pursuant to such reletting; (d) any other
remedy available to Prime Lessor under the Prime Lease in the event of a breach thereof or default thereunder by Sublessor; and (e) any other remedy
available at law or in equity.
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12.3. Damages. In the event Sublessor exercises its remedies under Section 12.2(a), (b) or (c) hereof, Sublessee shall pay to Sublessor, as part of
Sublessor’s damages: (i) if Sublessor fails to relet the Subleased Premises, upon demand, an amount equal to the sum of all Rent provided for herein to be paid
by Sublessee for the Term of the Sublease remaining from and after the Event of Default and (ii) if Sublessor relets the Subleased Premises, from time to time
upon demand, the amount by which all Rent due from the date Sublessor terminates this Sublease exceed the rents, charges, fees and costs paid by a new
tenant pursuant to the terms of such reletting, after deducting therefrom all reasonable costs of decoration, repairs, remodeling, alterations, advertising,
brokers’ commissions and other items in connection with such reletting. Without limiting the generality of Section 14 hereof, all expenses and costs
(including, without limitation, attorneys’ reasonable fees and costs) incurred by Sublessor in exercising any remedy provided for in this Section 12 shall be
covered by the indemnification set forth in Section 14 hereof, and Sublessee shall pay and/or reimburse Sublessor therefor, promptly upon demand, together
with interest on any amounts paid by Sublessor at a per annum rate (the “Default Rate”) equal to the “prime” or “reference” rate of interest publicly
announced as such, from time to time, by JP Morgan Chase NA, plus two percent (2.0%) per annum.

12.4. Right to Cure. If (a) an Event of Default occurs, or (b) any breach hereof or default hereunder by Sublessee continues after the applicable notice
and cure periods, or (c) any other event or state of affairs in or about the Subleased Premises or the Property constitutes a breach of or default under the Prime
Lease which continues after the applicable notice and cure periods, or, in Sublessor’s reasonable determination, poses a significant risk of injury or damage to
any person or property, or, in Sublessor’s reasonable determination, creates an unsightly condition, then Sublessor shall have the right, but not the obligation,
at Sublessee’s sole cost and expense, to cure the same, and Sublessee shall pay and/or reimburse Sublessor for any expenses incurred by Sublessor in
connection with such cure promptly upon demand therefor, together with interest on any amounts paid by Sublessor at the Default Rate from the date paid
through the date reimbursed (inclusive of interest).

13. INSURANCE.
13.1. Types of Coverage. Sublessee shall, at all times during the Term, carry commercial general liability, commercial property and any other types of

insurance as required of Sublessor, as tenant, under the Prime Lease. Sublessor, Prime Lessor and any mortgagee of the Property or of Sublessor’s leasehold
estate under the Prime Lease shall each be named as an additional insured on all such policies, which policies shall be written on an occurrence basis, be
primary and not contributing with any coverage carried by Sublessor or Prime Lessor and which shall include contractual liability coverage. Each such
policy of insurance shall provide that it will not be subject to cancellation or modification except after at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to
Sublessor and the other additionally insured parties, and shall contain the insurer’s waiver of subrogation rights. Sublessee shall furnish Sublessor with a
certificate of each such policy of insurance (in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to both Prime Lessor and Sublessor) or, at Sublessor’s request, with
the original of each such policy, together with evidence satisfactory to Sublessor of payment of premiums therefor. Sublessor or its designee shall have the
exclusive right to adjust any loss covered by any such policy of insurance to the extent it relates to the Subleased Premises.
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13.2. Waiver of Subrogation. Sublessor and Sublessee and all parties claiming under them mutually release and discharge each other from all claims
and liabilities arising from or relating to any casualty, hazard or other occurrence to, at or in connection with the Subleased Premises or the Property to the
extent covered by insurance, and hereby waive any right of subrogation which might otherwise exist on account thereof; provided, however, that such waiver
and release shall not operate in any case where the effect would be to invalidate such insurance coverage.

14. INDEMNIFICATION.
14.1. Except for Sublessor’s gross negligence or willful misconduct, Sublessee shall and hereby does protect, indemnify, defend and hold any and all of

the Sublessor, the Prime Lessor and the respective members, partners, officers, directors, employees and agents of both the Sublessor and the Prime Lessor
from and against any and all liabilities, losses, damages, claims, suits, causes of action, settlements, judgments, costs and expenses (including, without
limitation, attorneys’ reasonable fees and costs) arising from, in connection with, or relating to: (a) any injury to, or death of, any person, or damage to, or
destruction of, any property, on or about the Subleased Premises or the Property (including, without limitation, the Common Areas) caused by any or all of
Sublessee or its agents, employees, contractors, invitees, subtenants, licensees, concessionaires or assigns; (b) any negligent act or omission of (including,
without limitation, any breach of, or default under, this Sublease or the Prime Lease by) any or all of Sublessee or its agents, employees, contractors, invitees,
subtenants, licensees, concessionaires or assigns; or (c) this Sublease or Sublessee’s use and occupancy of the Subleased Premises and the Property
(including, without limitation, the Common Areas).

14.2. Except for Sublessee’s gross negligence or willful misconduct, Sublessor shall and hereby does protect, indemnify, defend and hold any and all of
the Sublessee, and the respective members, partners, officers, directors, employees and agents of the Sublessee from and against any and all liabilities, losses,
damages, claims, suits, causes of action, settlements, judgments, costs and expenses (including, without limitation, attorneys’ reasonable fees and costs)
arising from, in connection with, or relating to: (a) any injury to, or death of, any person, or damage to, or destruction of, any property, on or about the
Subleased Premises caused by any or all of Sublessor or its agents, employees, contractors, invitees, subtenants, licensees, concessionaires or assigns; or
(b) any negligent act or omission of any or all of Sublessor or its agents, employees, contractors, invitees, subtenants, licensees, concessionaires or assigns.

15. LIENS. Sublessee agrees: (a) to pay promptly, when due, the entire costs of Sublessee’s Work or any other work performed by Sublessee; (b) to obtain
from each contractor with whom Sublessee contracts for such work, prior to paying any amount to such contractor, a statement in writing under oath, or
verified by affidavit, of the names of all parties furnishing materials and labor for such work and the amounts due, or to become due, to each and, at the time
of payment, obtain from each contractor and from each such person or entity a waiver of lien in the amount paid to each; (c) to keep the Subleased Premises
and the Property at all times free of liens and claims for liens for labor and materials for work undertaken by or on behalf of Sublessee; (d) to furnish Sublessor
copies of all such contracts entered into by Sublessee and of such sworn statements and waivers of lien; (e) at Sublessor’s written request, to only use union
contractors previously and reasonably approved in writing by Sublessor; (f) to perform such work in such manner as to insure proper maintenance of good
labor relationships; and (g) to defend, indemnify, save and keep both Sublessor and Prime Lessor harmless from and against all liability, losses, damages,
injury, claims, suits, actions, judgments and costs to any person or property occasioned by or growing out of such work. If any claim for a mechanics lien
arises against any part of the Subleased Premises or the Property by reason of work
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undertaken by Sublessee, and such claim is not discharged as required by the Prime Lease, Sublessor may pay such claim and proceed to obtain the discharge
and release thereof, and Sublessee shall pay Sublessor as Additional Rent (with interest thereon at the Default Rate) the amount paid by Sublessor to obtain
the discharge and release thereof, together with court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees, upon demand. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
herein, Sublessee may contest the validity of any charge or lien in good faith by appropriate proceeding, provided that (a) such contest could not result in
any sale or forfeiture of the Property or any part thereof or interest therein, and (b) Sublessee shall furnish Sublessor with such security as Sublessor may
reasonably request to ensure the ultimate payment, removal or discharge of such charge or lien.

16. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW.
16.1. Definitions.

16.1.1 Relevant Laws. “Relevant Laws” means all applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations, codes, ordinances and administrative
orders having jurisdiction over the parties, the Property or the subject matter of this Sublease, including, but not limited to, the 1964 Civil Rights Act and all
amendments thereto, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Foreign Investment In Real Subleased Premises Tax Act, Environmental Laws (defined below), and
The Americans With Disabilities Act.

16.1.2 Environmental Laws. “Environmental Law” means any law or regulation by a governmental authority having jurisdiction over the
Property, including, without limitation, substances regulated under the Resources Conservation Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 6901 et seq., the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 52 U.S.C. Section 9601 et seq., any state or local environmental law, or any
common law theory based on nuisance or strict liability.

16.1.3 Hazardous Substance. Hazardous Substance means any matter regulated by any Environmental Law.
 
 16.2. Covenants and Agreements.

16.2.1 Throughout the Term, Sublessee shall, at Sublessee’s expense, comply with all Relevant Laws. Further, Sublessee shall, at Sublessee’s
expense, comply with all laws and requirements of any governmental or administrative authorities that have jurisdiction over the Property and that impose
any violation, order or duty on Sublessor or Sublessee arising from any or all of: (a) Sublessee’s particular use of the Subleased Premises; (b) the manner or
conduct of Sublessee’s business or operation of its installations, equipment or other property therein; (c) any cause or condition created by, or at the instance
of, Sublessee; and (d) breach of any of Sublessee’s obligations hereunder, regardless whether such compliance requires work that is structural or non-
structural, ordinary or extraordinary, foreseen or unforeseen; and Sublessee shall pay all the costs, expenses, fines, penalties and damages that are imposed
upon either or both of Sublessor and the Prime Lessor, by reason of, or arising out of, Sublessee’s failure to fully and promptly comply with and observe the
provisions of this Section.

16.2.2 Sublessee shall promptly provide Sublessor copies of all communications, permits or agreements with any governmental authority or
agency (federal, state or local) or any private entity relating in any way to a violation of any Relevant Law and/or, to the presence, release, threat of release,
placement on or in the Subleased Premises or the Property, or the generation, transportation, storage, use, treatment, or disposal at the Subleased Premises or
the Property, of any Hazardous Substance.
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16.2.3 Sublessor, and its agents and employees, shall have the right to enter the Subleased Premises and/or conduct appropriate tests for the
purposes of ascertaining Sublessee’s compliance with all Relevant Laws (including, without limitation, Environmental Laws) with respect to the Subleased
Premises or the Property.

16.2.4 Upon written request by Sublessor, Sublessee shall provide Sublessor with the results of appropriate tests of air, water or soil to
demonstrate that Sublessee complies with all Environmental Laws relating in any way to the presence of Hazardous Substances on the Subleased Premises or
the Property.

16.3. Remedial Action. Sublessee shall not conduct or authorize the generation, transportation, storage, use, treatment or disposal on or in the
Subleased Premises or the Property, of any hazardous substance. Sublessee’s failure to comply with the provisions of this Section 16.3 shall constitute an
immediate Event of Default under this Sublease. If, due to the acts or omissions of Sublessee, the presence, release, threat of release, placement on or in the
Subleased Premises or the Property, or the generation, transportation, storage, use, treatment, or disposal at the Subleased Premises or the Property, of any
Hazardous Substance: (i) gives rise to liability (including, but not limited to, a response action, remedial action, or removal action) under Environmental
Laws, (ii) causes an adverse public health effect, or (iii) pollutes, or threatens to pollute, the environment, Sublessee, at its sole cost and expense, shall
promptly take any and all remedial and removal action necessary to clean up the Subleased Premises and the Property, and mitigate exposure to liability
arising from the hazardous substance, regardless whether required by law. If Sublessee fails to perform any remediation required by this Section, Sublessor
may (in addition to pursuing any and all other available remedies), upon written notice to Sublessee, undertake such remediation for which Sublessor shall be
indemnified by Sublessee pursuant to Section 14. Sublessee’s obligations under this Section 16 shall survive the expiration or termination of this Sublease
for any reason.

17. NOTICES. Notices to Sublessor hereunder shall be sent by overnight delivery service (such as Federal Express, United Parcel Service, and the like) or by
telecopy, at the Property, or at such other address as Sublessor may have given Sublessee in writing. Notices to Sublessee hereunder or notices which
Sublessor may be required to give Sublessee pursuant to the laws of the State where the Property is located shall be sent by overnight delivery service (such
as Federal Express, United Parcel Service or the like) or by telecopy, addressed to Sublessee at the Property, or at such other address as Sublessor may have
given Sublessor in writing, with a copy of such notice being concurrently sent by overnight delivery service (such as Federal Express, United Parcel Service
or the like) or by telecopy to Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., 4801 Woodway Dr., Suite 200-E, Houston, Texas 77056 (Attn: General Counsel). All notices
shall be deemed received on the day delivered (or the day on which delivery is refused or cannot be consummated due to addressee having vacated the
premises, or otherwise).

18. SURRENDER. Upon the expiration of the Term or termination of this Sublease, Sublessee shall peaceably surrender to Sublessor complete and exclusive
possession of the Subleased Premises, broom clean, in good order and repair, in a condition the same as or better than on the date hereof, ordinary wear and
tear and unavoidable casualty excepted, and otherwise in the condition in which Sublessor, as lessee, is required to surrender the Subleased Premises under
the Prime Lease. At that time, Sublessee shall deliver all keys to the Subleased Premises to Sublessor.
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19. ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES. Sublessee shall, at any time and from time to time, as requested by Sublessor, execute and deliver to Sublessor (and to
any existing or prospective mortgage lender, or other party reasonably designated by Sublessor), within seven (7) days after the request therefor, an estoppel
certificate in the form required by Sublessor, or by the Prime Lease or Prime Lessor, as the case may be. Any such statement delivered pursuant hereto shall be
deemed a representation and warranty to be relied upon by the party requesting the certificate and by others with whom Sublessor may be dealing, regardless
of independent investigation.

20. MISCELLANEOUS.
20.1. Partial Invalidity. The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this Sublease shall not render any other provision hereof

unenforceable, invalid or illegal. Any such unenforceable, invalid or illegal provision shall be limited to the minimum extent necessary to render it
enforceable, valid and legal and enforced to the maximum extent permitted by law, or excised from this Sublease, as circumstances may require.

20.2. Choice of Law. This Sublease shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the state in which the Property is located,
without regard to its conflict of laws or choice of law rules.

20.3. Integration. This Sublease constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and there are no prior or
contemporaneous oral or written representations, promises or agreements not expressly set forth herein. This Sublease may be amended or modified only by a
written instrument signed by Sublessor and Sublessee, except to the extent such amendment or modification is deemed to happen automatically by virtue of
any amendment to or modification of the Prime Lease.

20.4. Binding Character. Subject to Section 6 hereof, all of the terms and provisions of this Sublease shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective legal representatives, successors, transferees and assigns.

20.5. Captions. Section headings are included solely for convenience, do not constitute part of this Sublease, and do not modify, explain or fully or
accurately describe the content of any section or provision of this Sublease.

20.6. Holding Over. Sublessee has no right to renew this Sublease or extend the Term or to hold over following expiration or termination of the Term,
any of which shall constitute an immediate Event of Default (and no notice or grace period shall be applicable) hereunder entitling Sublessor to exercise all
of its rights and remedies under Section 12 hereof. Acceptance of rent or other sums from Sublessee after expiration or termination of the Term shall not
constitute consent to any holding over or agreement to any renewal or extension; provided, however, that, at Sublessor’s option, any holding over by
Sublessee shall constitute Sublessee’s agreement to a tenancy from month to month at two hundred percent (200%) of the Rent payable hereunder during the
Term, and otherwise on the terms of this Sublease. In no event and under no circumstances, however, may any holding over continue, at any cost whatsoever,
beyond the expiration or termination of the term of the Prime Lease.
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20.7. Waivers; Consents. No consent(s) to any proposed action of Sublessee, and no waiver(s) of, or failure to assert, any right or remedy hereunder, by
Sublessor (and/or Prime Lessor) on any one or more occasions shall constitute a course of dealing or a consent to such action or a waiver of such right or
remedy on any other occasion. No waiver shall be effective hereunder unless set forth in a writing signed by Sublessor.

20.8. Relationship of Parties. Nothing contained herein is intended, nor shall it be construed, to evidence, confirm or create any relationship of
principal and agent, partnership, joint venture, master and servant, or any other relationship between the parties hereto other than the relationship of sublessor
and sublessee.

20.9. Recording. Neither this Sublease, nor any memorandum or “short form” hereof, nor any notice of Sublessee’s interest hereunder, shall be recorded
by Sublessee, and any such recording shall be deemed an Event of Default entitling Sublessor to exercise all of its rights and remedies under Section 12
hereof.

20.10. Counterparts. This Sublease may be executed in any number of identical counterparts, any of which may contain he signatures of less than all
parties, but all of which together shall constitute a single instrument.

20.11. Brokers. Each of Sublessor and Sublessee, warrant and represent to the other that they have dealt with no real estate broker in connection with
this Sublease and that no broker is entitled to any commission on account of this Sublease.

20.12. Attorneys’ Fees. If Sublessor or Sublessee shall commence an action against the other arising out of or in connection with this Sublease, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs of suit and reasonable attorney’s fees.

20.13 Consent by Lessor. THIS SUBLEASE SHALL BE OF NO FORCE OR EFFECT UNLESS CONSENTED TO BY PRIME LESSOR ON OR
BEFORE THE SUBLEASE COMMENCEMENT DATE. The parties acknowledge and agree that Paragraph 8.15 of the Prime Lease constitutes Prime Lessor’s
consent to this Sublease.

20.14 Time. Time is of the essence under this Sublease.

20.15 Waiver of Jury Trial. SUBLESSOR AND SUBLESSEE, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT THAT THEY MAY LAWFULLY DO SO, HEREBY
WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING BROUGHT BY ANY PARTY TO THIS SUBLEASE WITH RESPECT TO THIS SUBLEASE,
THE PREMISES, OR ANY OTHER MATTER RELATED TO THIS SUBLEASE OR THE PREMISES.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Sublease to be executed on the year and day first written above.
 

SUBLESSOR:

TONTINE ASSOCIATES LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company

By:  /s/ Jeffrey L. Gendell
Its:  Managing Member

SUBLESSEE:

IES SHARED SERVICES, INC, a Delaware corporation

By:  /s/ William L. Fiedler
Its:  Vice President
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EXHIBIT A
Depiction of Subleased Premises and Common Areas

(See Attached)
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Exhibit 10.2

AMENDMENT TO LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”) is made and entered into on May 11, 2012, by and among
BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., a national banking association (“BA”), in its capacity as collateral and administrative agent for the Lenders under the Loan
Agreement (as hereinafter defined) (BA, in such capacity, the “Agent”), BA, as Lender under the Loan Agreement (BA, together with the various financial
institutions listed on the signature pages hereof, in such capacity, the “Lenders”), the Lenders, INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC., a Delaware
corporation (“Parent”), each of the Subsidiaries of Parent listed on Annex I attached hereto (Parent and such Subsidiaries of Parent being herein referred to
collectively as the “Borrowers”), and the Subsidiaries of Parent listed on Annex II attached hereto (such Subsidiaries being referred to herein as the
“Guarantors”, and Borrowers and Guarantors being referred to herein as the “Credit Parties”).

RECITALS

A. Agent, Lenders and Credit Parties have entered into that certain Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of May 12, 2006 (as amended to date and as
it may be further amended, restated, extended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Loan Agreement”).

B. Credit Parties, Agent and Lenders desire to amend the Loan Agreement as hereinafter set forth, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set
forth.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

ARTICLE I
Definitions

1.01 Capitalized terms used in this Amendment are defined in the Loan Agreement, as amended hereby, unless otherwise stated.

ARTICLE II
Amendments

Effective as of March 30, 2012 (the “Effective Date”), the Loan Agreement is hereby amended as follows:
2.01 Amendment to Section 9.3.7. Section 9.3.7 of the Loan Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to provide as follows:

“9.3.7. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio. At any time the aggregate amount of Unrestricted Cash On Hand of the Credit Parties plus Availability is
less than $30,000,000, maintain a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio, on a Consolidated basis, of not less than 1.00:1.00, with respect to the twelve-month
period ending on the last day of the preceding fiscal month and on the last day of each fiscal month subsequent to such preceding fiscal month, until
such time as the aggregate amount of Unrestricted Cash On Hand of the Credit Parties plus Availability has been at least $30,000,000 for a period of 60
consecutive days.”



2.02 Amendment to Section 9.3.8. Section 9.3.8 of the Loan Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to provide as follows:
“9.3.8 Extended Period Financial Covenants. During the Extended Period, if there are any Loans then outstanding, maintain (a) a Consolidated

EBITDA of more than (i) negative $4,700,000 for the period beginning October 1, 2011, and ending March 31, 2012, (ii) negative $4,850,000 for the
period beginning October 1, 2011, and ending April 30, 2012, (iii) negative $4,725,000 for the period beginning October 1, 2011, and ending May 31,
2012, and (iv) negative $4,475,000 for the period beginning October 1, 2011 and ending June 30, 2012, and (b) a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio, on a
Consolidated basis, of not less than 1.00:1.00 (i) for the fiscal month ending July 31, 2012, with respect to the one-month period then ending, (ii) for
the fiscal month ending August 31, 2012, with respect to the two-month period then ending, (iii) for the fiscal month ending September 30, 2012, with
respect to the three-month period then ending, and (iv) for the fiscal month ending October 31, 2012, with respect to the four-month period then
ending.”

2.03 Calculation of EBITDA. The parties hereto agree that notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Loan Agreement or in any other Loan
Document, the calculation of EBITDA shall not reflect any gain or loss now existing or hereafter arising in connection with that certain delinquent payment
obligation of IBCS Group, Inc. and Edmund C. Scarborough to Borrower in the present approximate amount of $1,875,000, whether or not such gain or loss
would otherwise be recognized under GAAP.

ARTICLE III
No Waiver

3.01 No Waiver. Nothing in this Amendment shall directly or indirectly whatsoever either: (i) be construed as a waiver of any covenant or provision of
the Loan Agreement, any other Loan Document or any other contract or instrument or (ii) impair, prejudice or otherwise adversely affect any right of Agent or
Lender at any time to exercise any right, privilege or remedy in connection with the Loan Agreement, any other Loan Document or any other contract or
instrument, or (iii) constitute any course of dealing or other basis for altering any obligation of Credit Parties or any right, privilege or remedy of Agent or
Lenders under the Loan Agreement, any other Loan Document or any other contract or instrument or constitute any consent by Agent or Lenders to any prior,
existing or future violations of the Loan Agreement or any other Loan Document. Credit Parties hereby agree and acknowledge that the Credit Parties are
expected to strictly comply with their duties, obligations and agreements under the Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents.
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ARTICLE IV
Conditions Precedent

4.01 Conditions to Effectiveness. The effectiveness of this Amendment is subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions precedent in a manner
satisfactory to Agent:

(a) Agent shall have received this Amendment, duly executed by each of the Credit Parties.
(b) The representations and warranties contained herein and in the Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents, as each is amended hereby,

shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the date hereof, as if made on the date hereof, except for those representations and warranties
specifically made as of an earlier date, which shall be true and correct in all material respects as of such earlier date.

(c) After giving effect to this Amendment, no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, unless such Default or Event of
Default has been otherwise specifically waived in writing by Agent.

(d) All organizational proceedings taken in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Amendment and all documents, instruments
and other legal matters incident thereto shall be reasonably satisfactory to Agent and its legal counsel.

ARTICLE V
Ratifications, Representations and Warranties

5.01 Ratifications. The terms and provisions set forth in this Amendment shall modify and supersede all inconsistent terms and provisions set forth in
the Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents, and, except as expressly modified and superseded by this Amendment, the terms and provisions of the
Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents are ratified and confirmed and shall continue in full force and effect. Each Credit Party and Lenders and
Agent agree that the Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents, as amended hereby, shall continue to be legal, valid, binding and enforceable in
accordance with their respective terms.

5.02 Representations and Warranties. Each Credit Party hereby represents and warrants to Lenders and Agent that (a) the execution, delivery and
performance of this Amendment and any and all other Loan Documents executed and/or delivered in connection herewith have been authorized by all
requisite organizational action on the part of such Credit Party and will not violate the organizational or governing documents of such Credit Party; (b) the
representations and warranties contained in the Loan Agreement, as amended hereby, and any other Loan Document are true and correct in all material
respects on and as of the date hereof and on and as of the date of execution hereof as though made on and as of each such date, except for those
representations and warranties specifically made as of an earlier date, which shall be true and correct in all material respects as of such earlier date; (c) no
Default or Event of Default under the Loan Agreement, as amended hereby, has occurred and is continuing, unless such Default or Event of Default has been
specifically waived in writing by Agent; (d) each Credit Party is in material compliance with all covenants
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and agreements contained in the Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents, as amended hereby; and (e) no Credit Party has amended its organizational
or governing documents since the date of execution of the Loan Agreement other than as has been previously disclosed and delivered to the Agent.

ARTICLE VI
Miscellaneous Provisions

6.01 Survival of Representations and Warranties. All representations and warranties made in the Loan Agreement or any other Loan Document,
including, without limitation, any document furnished in connection with this Amendment, shall survive the execution and delivery of this Amendment and
the other Loan Documents, and no investigation by Lender or Agent or any closing shall affect the representations and warranties or the right of Lender or
Agent to rely upon them.

6.02 Reference to Loan Agreement. Each of the Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents, and any and all other Loan Documents, documents
or instruments now or hereafter executed and delivered pursuant to the terms hereof or pursuant to the terms of the Loan Agreement, as amended hereby, are
hereby amended so that any reference in the Loan Agreement and such other Loan Documents to the Loan Agreement shall mean a reference to the Loan
Agreement, as amended hereby, and any reference in the Loan Agreement and such other Loan Documents to any other Loan Document amended by the
provisions of this Amendment shall mean a reference to such other Loan Documents, as amended hereby.

6.03 Expenses of Agent. As provided in the Loan Agreement, each Credit Party agrees to pay on demand all costs and out-of-pocket expenses incurred
by Agent in connection with the preparation, negotiation, and execution of this Amendment and the other Loan Documents executed pursuant hereto and
any and all amendments, modifications, and supplements thereto, including, without limitation, the costs and fees of Agent’s legal counsel, and all costs and
out-of-pocket expenses incurred by Agent in connection with the enforcement or preservation of any rights under the Loan Agreement, as amended hereby, or
any other Loan Documents, including, without, limitation, the costs and fees of Agent’s legal counsel and consultants retained by Agent or retained by
Agent’s legal counsel.

6.04 Severability. Any provision of this Amendment held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable shall not impair or
invalidate the remainder of this Amendment and the effect thereof shall be confined to the provision so held to be invalid or unenforceable.

6.05 Successors and Assigns. This Amendment is binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of Lenders and Agent and each Credit Party and their
respective successors and assigns, except that no Credit Party may assign or transfer any of its rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written
consent of Lender and Agent.

6.06 Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original,
but all of which when taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
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6.07 Effect of Waiver. No consent or waiver, express or implied, by Lenders or Agent to or for any breach of or deviation from any covenant or
condition by any Credit Party shall be deemed a consent to or waiver of any other breach of the same or any other covenant, condition or duty.

6.08 Headings. The headings, captions, and arrangements used in this Amendment are for convenience only and shall not affect the interpretation of
this Amendment.

6.09 Applicable Law. This Agreement and all other Loan Documents executed pursuant hereto shall be deemed to have been made and to be
performable in and shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.

6.10 Final Agreement. THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS, EACH AS AMENDED HEREBY, REPRESENT THE
ENTIRE EXPRESSION OF THE PARTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE SUBJECT MATTER HEREOF ON THE DATE THIS AMENDMENT IS EXECUTED.
THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS, AS AMENDED HEREBY, MAY NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF
PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS OR SUBSEQUENT ORAL AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES. THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS
BETWEEN THE PARTIES. NO MODIFICATION, RESCISSION, WAIVER, RELEASE OR AMENDMENT OF ANY PROVISION OF THIS AMENDMENT
SHALL BE MADE, EXCEPT BY A WRITTEN AGREEMENT SIGNED BY EACH CREDIT PARTY AND LENDERS AND AGENT.

6.11 Release. EACH CREDIT PARTY HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT HAS NO DEFENSE, COUNTERCLAIM, OFFSET, CROSS-
COMPLAINT, CLAIM OR DEMAND OF ANY KIND OR NATURE WHATSOEVER THAT CAN BE ASSERTED TO REDUCE OR ELIMINATE ALL
OR ANY PART OF ITS LIABILITY TO REPAY THE “OBLIGATIONS” OR TO SEEK AFFIRMATIVE RELIEF OR DAMAGES OF ANY KIND OR
NATURE FROM LENDER OR AGENT. EACH CREDIT PARTY HEREBY VOLUNTARILY AND KNOWINGLY RELEASES AND FOREVER
DISCHARGES LENDERS AND AGENT AND ITS RESPECTIVE PREDECESSORS, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, FROM
ALL POSSIBLE CLAIMS, DEMANDS, ACTIONS, CAUSES OF ACTION, DAMAGES, COSTS, EXPENSES, AND LIABILITIES (INCLUDING ALL
STRICT LIABILITIES) WHATSOEVER, KNOWN OR UNKNOWN, ANTICIPATED OR UNANTICIPATED, SUSPECTED OR UNSUSPECTED,
FIXED, CONTINGENT, OR CONDITIONAL, AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, ORIGINATING IN WHOLE OR IN PART ON OR BEFORE THE DATE
THIS AMENDMENT IS EXECUTED, WHICH ANY CREDIT PARTY MAY NOW OR HEREAFTER HAVE AGAINST LENDERS OR AGENT OR ITS
RESPECTIVE PREDECESSORS, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, IF ANY, AND IRRESPECTIVE OF WHETHER ANY
SUCH CLAIMS ARISE OUT OF CONTRACT, TORT, VIOLATION OF LAW OR REGULATIONS, OR OTHERWISE, AND ARISING FROM ANY
“LOANS,” INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY CONTRACTING FOR, CHARGING, TAKING,
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RESERVING, COLLECTING OR RECEIVING INTEREST IN EXCESS OF THE HIGHEST LAWFUL RATE APPLICABLE, THE EXERCISE OF
ANY RIGHTS AND REMEDIES UNDER THE LOAN AGREEMENT OR OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS, AND NEGOTIATION FOR AND
EXECUTION OF THIS AMENDMENT.

[Signature pages follow.]
 

-6-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been executed on the date first written above, to be effective as the respective date set forth above.
 

AGENT:

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., as Agent

By:  /s/ H. Michael Wills
Name:  H. Michael Wills
Title:  Senior Vice President

LENDERS:

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.

By:  /s/ H. Michael Wills
Name:  H. Michael Wills
Title:  Senior Vice President

Commitment: $20,000,000

WELLS FARGO CAPITAL FINANCE, LLC

By:  /s/ David P. Hill
Name:  David P. Hill
Title:  Vice President

Commitment: $20,000,000



CREDIT PARTIES:

INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.

By:  /s/ Robert W. Lewey
 Robert W. Lewey
 Chief Financial Officer

ICS HOLDINGS, LLC
IES COMMERCIAL, INC.
IES CONSOLIDATION, LLC
IES OPERATIONS GROUP, INC.
IES PROPERTIES, INC.
IES PURCHASING & MATERIALS, INC.
IES REINSURANCE, LTD
IES RESIDENTIAL, INC.
IES SHARED SERVICES, INC.
IES TANGIBLE PROPERTIES, INC.
INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL FINANCE, INC.
KEY ELECTRICAL SUPPLY, INC.
THOMAS POPP & COMPANY

By:  /s/ Robert W. Lewey
Name:  Robert W. Lewey
Title:  Chief Financial Officer

IES MANAGEMENT ROO, LP

By: ICS HOLDINGS, LLC

Its General Partner

By:  /s/ Robert W. Lewey
Name:  Robert W. Lewey
Title:  Chief Financial Officer



IES MANAGEMENT, LP

By: INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.

Its General Partner

By:  /s/ Robert W. Lewey
Name:  Robert W. Lewey
Title:  Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, James M. Lindstrom, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
Registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: May 14, 2012
 

/s/ JAMES M. LINDSTROM
James M. Lindstrom
President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Robert W. Lewey, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
Registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: May 14, 2012
 

/s/ ROBERT W. LEWEY
Robert W. Lewey
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this Quarterly Report of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2012 (the
“Report”), I, James M. Lindstrom, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 

 (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 

 (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

 
Date: May 14, 2012  By:  /s/ JAMES M. LINDSTROM
    James M. Lindstrom
    President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this Quarterly Report of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2012 (the
“Report”), I, Robert W. Lewey, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant
to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 

 (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 

 (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

 
Date: May 14, 2012  By:  /s/ ROBERT W. LEWEY
    Robert W. Lewey
    Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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